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I am pleased to present to Shareholders the financial results of

Simsen International Corporation Limited (the “Company”) and

its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) for the year ended 30 April

2007.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

For the year under review, the Group recorded a profit of

approximately HK$69,252,000, as compared with HK$156,144,000

in 2006, representing a decrease of 56%. Turnover from

continuing operations for the year under review was approximately

HK$124,445,000, compared with HK$173,120,000 in 2006,

representing a decrease of 28%. The fall was partly attributable

to the slowing increase in the share price of the Group’s

investment in GobiMin, Inc., a mining company listed on the TSX

Venture Exchange. The investment gain was significantly less than

that of last year and consequently was only able to offset a lesser

extent of the Group’s weaker performance in other operating

sectors. The Group considers its equity holding in GobiMin, Inc.

a valuable investment.

Securities

The securities segment comprises broking and dealing of

securities, futures and options contracts, provision of IPO margin

financing, and results of investment holding and proprietary

trading of securities.

Due to intensive competition in the local brokerage industry

continuing to drive down brokerage commission and squeezing

our operating profit margins, revenue generated from securities

segment was HK$109,285,000 for the year under review

compared with HK$146,866,000 in 2006, representing a

decrease of 26%. Significantly, fair value gain on securities, one

of the key contributors to the segment revenue, amounted to

about HK$65,004,760 for the year ended 30 April 2007 as

compared with HK$121,612,777 for the year ended 30 April

2006, representing a decrease of 47%. The fair value gain result

was mainly contributed by an appreciation of market value of

listed equity investment held by the Group for the years ended

30 April 2006 and 30 April 2007 respectively.

69,252,000

156,144,000

56%

124,445,000

173,120,000 28%

GobiMin, Inc.

GobiMin, Inc.

109,285,000

146,866 ,000
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65,004,760

121,612,777 47%
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Bullion

The bullion segment comprises broking and dealing of bullion

contracts, which recorded a trading profit of about HK$132,000

for the year under review as opposed to HK$24,351,000 in 2006,

representing a decrease of 99%.

Although as noted in the auditors’ report, the Group sustained

trading losses of some HK$23.74 million from certain transactions

during the year, it gained about HK$25 million from other trading

transactions, with the net result that the Group was able to

generate a small trading gain for the segment during the year.

The segment’s performance for the year can only be described

as unsatisfactory; the Group failed to take advantage from market

volatility in the bullion markets during May and June of 2006,

and was unable to generate sufficient gain during the less volatile

months of trading during the year.

Forex

The forex segment comprises broking and dealing of forex

contracts, which recorded a revenue of about HK$10,273,000

and its operation turned around to trading profit since being fully

owned and managed by the Group at 14 October 2006 and

turned around to trading profit since September 2006. The

segment’s improvement was mainly due to the strengthened

capital base after an additional HK$20 million injection of capital

and subordinated loans, which increased our financial flexibility

and operating margin in forex brokering.

132,000

24,351,000 99%

23,740,000

25,000,000

10,273,000

20,000,000
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Corporate and Others

The corporate and others segment comprises loan financing,

provision of management and consultancy services together with

corporate income and expense items and other services. Revenue

generated f rom corporate  and others  segment  was

HK$4,755,000 for the year under review as compared with

HK$1,903,000 in 2006, representing an increase of 150%, and

mainly comprised of income generated from the provision of

management and consultancy services, provision of other

financing services, together with corporate income and expenses

items.

PROSPECTS

With the strategic acquisitions of the remaining 50% interest in a

local foreign exchange dealing company during the year under

review and a 40% interest in a local securities company in May

2007, the Group commenced internal business collaboration and

expect more product cross-selling, enhancing our market breadth

and economies of scale. It is hoped that with more co-marketing

and co-branding of the financial products, synergies from the

acquisitions will bring forth both a reduction of the costs of the

Group’s financial markets operations as well as an increase of

income from these operation.

In addition, the Group had proven its ability to extract and process

precious metal resources, and profited from the disposal of its

entire interests in an associate to a company listed on the TSX

Venture Exchange. Leveraging on our accumulated experience

in the industry, the Group has invested in Guangxi and Xinjiang

mining projects, and will allocate more resources in collaboration

with investment partners. In the longer term, it is the Group’s

strategic intent to develop mining investments into one of our

core businesses with significant earning contribution.

1,903,000

4,755,000 150%

50%

40%
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During the audit of the annual financial results of the Group for

the year ended 30 April 2007, the auditors of the Company

discovered a system malfunction in a subsidiary of the Group

which is engaged in the bullion trading. Because of this system

malfunction and the absence of adequate effective control, the

external auditors were not able to ascertain the completeness

and appropriate classification of certain transactions that occurred

during the year ended 30 April 2007. A qualified opinion was

given by the independent auditors report forming part of the

annual report of the Company for the year ended 30 April 2007.

In this regard, the Group will strengthen its internal control systems

and procedures in respect of its bullion activities. In particular,

the operation of bullion trading will engage an independent

accounting firm or consultant firm with relevant industry

experience to review, revise and update the operating manual

for the bullion trading division of the Group (the “Manual”) and

will carry out periodic reviews of the Manual from time to time.

Appreciation

I wish to express my sincere appreciation to all the staff of the

Group for their continuing dedication and the enduring support.

Haywood Cheung

Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 August 2007
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 30 April 2007, the Group had secured bank loans of about

HK$11,602,000 bearing interest at Hong Kong dollar prime rate

minus 2.4% per annum and repayable in June 2015.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL
RESOURCES

As at 30 April 2007, the current ratio of the Group was

approximately 274% and the net current assets were

approximately HK$260,492,000. The Group’s gearing ratio, which

was derived by dividing the aggregate amount of bank borrowings

and other interest-bearing loan by the amount of shareholder’s

equity, was approximately 4%.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

The Group completed the acquisition of a 50% interest in Lee

Fung Hong (Cheung’s) Forex Dealers Limited on 14 October 2006.

Details of such acquisition were set out in a circular to the

shareholders of the Company dated 6 October 2006.

On 6 March 2007, the Group entered into a conditional share

sale agreement to acquire a 40% interest in the issued share

capital of Head & Shoulders Securities Limited involving the issue

of new shares, for the consideration of HK$3 million in cash and

HK$13 million by the allotment and issue of 101,960,000 new

shares of  the Company as considerat ion shares ( the

“Acquisition”). The Acquisition was completed on 6 June 2007

and its details were set out in a circular to the shareholders of

the Company dated 21 March 2007.

11,602,000

2.4%

2 7 4 %

260,492,000

(

) 4%

( ) 50%

40%

3,000,000

101,960,000

13,000,000  (
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The Group completed the acquisition of a 50% interest in Precious

Source International Limited in consideration of RMB4 million on

27 April 2007.

CURRENCY STRUCTURE

As at 30 April 2007, the Group has a CAD2,594,000 investment

in a company listed on the TSX Venture Exchange in Canada. No

hedging for non-Hong Kong dollars assets or investment has

been made during the year. Save for the above, the Group has

limited exposure to foreign exchange rate fluctuations as most

of the transactions, including borrowings, are conducted and the

cash and cash equivalents were held, in Hong Kong dollar.

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 30 April 2007, the total bank loans and obligations under

finance leases amounted to HK$11,602,000 and HK$1,042,000

respectively, which were secured by the properties held by the

Group and the leased assets acquired under the finance leases.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

As at 30 April 2007, the Group employed a total of about 160

employees, as compared to 81 employees in 2006. The Group

recruits and promotes individuals based on merit and their

development potentials for the posit ions offered. When

formulating staff remuneration and benefit policies, primary

considerations are given to their performance and prevailing salary

levels in the market. Benefits provided to the employees by the

Group include training, mandatory provident fund and medical

coverage. No share options were granted since the adoption of

the share options scheme.

50%

4,000,000

2,594,000

(

)

11,602,000

1,042,000

81
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SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On 6 March 2007, the Group entered into a conditional share

sale agreement to acquire a 40% interest in the issued share

capital of Head & Shoulders Securities Limited involving the issue

of new shares, for the consideration of HK$3 million in cash and

HK$13 million by the allotment and issue of 101,960,000 new

shares of  the Company as considerat ion shares ( the

“Acquisition”). The Acquisition was completed on 6 June 2007

and its details were set out in a circular to the shareholders of

the Company dated 21 March 2007.

On 29 May 2007, the Company entered into a conditional placing

agreement to place through the placing agent, on a fully

underwritten basis, 120,000,000 placing shares at the placing

price of HK$0.42 per placing share (the “Placing”).

Details of the Placing were set out in an announcement and a

circular made by the Company on 30 May 2007 and 5 June 2007

respectively. The Placing was completed on 22 June 2007.

Contingent Liabilities

Save as disclosed in note 45 to the financial statements, the

Group has no material contingent liabilities as at 30 April 2007.

Commitments

Save as disclosed in note 47 to the financial statements, the

Group had no commitments in respect of net open position of

bullion contracts undertaken in the ordinary course of business

existing at the balance sheet date as at 30 April 2007.

40%

3,000,000

101,960,000

13,000,000  (

)

0 . 4 2

120,000,000 ( )

45

47
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of

corporate governance within a sensible framework with an

emphasis on the principles of transparency, accountability and

independence. The board of directors (the “Directors”) of the

Company (the “Board”) believes that good corporate governance

is essential to the success of the Company and the enhancement

of shareholders’ value.

The Board has adopted the code provisions set out in the Code

on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) contained

in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities

(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong

Limited. The Board considers that the Company has complied

with the CG Code throughout the year ended 30 April 2007.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities

Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)

as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its code of

conduct regarding Directors’ securities transaction. Having made

specific enquiry with all Directors, the Board have confirmed

compliance with the required standard set out in the Model Code

throughout the year ended 30 April 2007.
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The Board of Directors

The Board is responsible for overseeing the management of the

Company’s business and affairs with the objective of enhancing

shareholders’ value, including setting and approving the Group’s

strategic direction and other important matters such as interim

and annual results, dividends, annual financial budgets, business

and operation plans etc., while delegating day-to-day operations

of the Group to the management. Besides, each member of the

Board is expected to make a full and active contribution to the

Board’s affairs and to ensure that the Board acts in the best

interest of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

The management and control of the business of the Company

are vested in the Board. It is the duty of the Board to establish

policies, strategies and plans, and to provide leadership in the

attainment of the objective of creating value to shareholders.

The current Board has delegated a schedule of responsibilities

to the operat ional  committee of the Company. These

responsibilities include the implementation of decisions of the

Board, the co-ordination and direction of day-to-day operation

and management of the Company in accordance with the

management strategies and plans approved by the Board,

formulating and monitoring the production and operation plans

and budgets, and supervising and monitoring the control systems.

The Board currently comprises of a total of 8 Directors, including

5 Executive Directors and 3 Independent Non-executive Directors,

whose biographies are set out on pages 22 to 24 of this annual

report.

22 24
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During the year, the Board had held 8 board meetings. Individual

attendance of each Director, on a named basis, at the board

meeting is as follows:

No. of meeting attended

Name of Director

Executive Directors

– Mr. Haywood Cheung (Chairman) – 7/8

– Mr. Chan Hok Ching (Acting Managing Director) – 8/8

– Mr. Cheung Tak Kwai, Stanley – 8/8

– Mr. So Pak Kwai – 8/8

– Dr. Chang Si-Chung – 6/8

Independent Non-executive Directors

– Mr. Chan Ka Ling, Edmond – 8/8

– Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin – 7/8

– Mr. Wong Yu Choi – 8/8

The Company had received annual confirmation of independence

for the year ended 30 April 2007 from the 3 Independent Non-

executive Directors in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing

Rules. The Board has assessed their independence and

concluded that all Independent Non-executive Directors are

independent within the definition of the Listing Rules.

Save that Mr. Haywood Cheung and Mr. Cheung Tak Kwai,

Stanley are brothers of each another, none of the Directors has

any relationship with the others.

Chairman and Acting Managing Director

The roles of the Chairman and Acting Managing Director are

segregated and are not exercised by the same individual. Mr.

Haywood Cheung, the Chairman of the Company, is responsible

for ensuring that the Board works effectively and that all important

issues are discussed in a timely manner.

3.13
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Mr. Chan Hok Ching, the Acting Managing Director of the

Company, is responsible for the day-to-day operations and

conducting regular meetings with other Executive Directors and

senior management, at which operational issues and financial

performance are evaluated. None of the Directors is related to

the Acting Managing Director.

Nomination of Directors

Since the full Board wil l be involved in the removal and

appointment of directors, the Company has not established a

Nomination Committee. The Board will, based on its own need,

adopt criteria such as expertise, experience, integrity and

commitment when selecting and appointing directors.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee (including all Independent Non-

executive Directors) is responsible for annually reviewing the

existing remuneration policy.

The role and function of Remuneration Committee are to formulate

and review the annual remuneration policy of the Company and

then recommend to the Board and to determine the specific

remuneration packages of the Executive Directors and the senior

management. The objective of the remuneration policy is to

attract, retain, and motivate a high calibre team which is essential

to the success of the Group.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee had held 2

meetings. Members of the Remuneration Committee and the

attendance of each member are as follows:

No. of meeting attended

Name of committee member

– Mr. Chan Ka Ling, Edmond (Chairman) – 2/2

– Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin – 2/2

– Mr. Wong Yu Choi – 2/2
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee (including all Independent Non-executive

Directors) did not involve in the day-to-day management of the

Company. The duties of Audit Committee are as follows:

– making recommendations on the appointment, re-

appointment and removal of external auditors and

considering the terms of such appointment;

– developing and implementing policies on the engagement

of external auditors for non-audit services;

– monitoring the integrity of the financial statements, annual

and interim reports and the auditors’ report to ensure that

the information presents a true and balanced assessment

of the Group’s financial position;

– ensuring that management has fulfilled its duty to maintain

an effective internal control system.

During the year, the Audit Committee had held 1 meeting with

external auditors to discuss any areas of concerns during the

audits and approve the audited financial statements and 1

meeting to approve the interim financial statements. The Audit

Committee focuses not only on the impact of the changes in

accounting policies and practices but also on the compliance

with accounting standards. Members of the Audit Committee and

the attendance of each member are as follows:

–

–

–

–

No. of meeting attended

Name of committee member

– Mr. Chan Ka Ling, Edmond (Chairman) – 2/2

– Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin – 2/2

– Mr. Wong Yu Choi – 2/2
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Operational Committee

Apart from the Remuneration Committee (details as disclosed

under the section headed “Remuneration Committee”) and Audit

Committee (details as disclosed under the section headed “Audit

Committee”), the Board had also established an Operational

Committee with specific terms of reference. The Operational

Committee (comprising 4 Executive Directors namely Mr.

Haywood Cheung, Mr. Chan Hok Ching, Mr. Cheung Tak Kwai,

Stanley and Mr. So Pak Kwai) is responsible for making policy

and discussing issues relating to the Company’s day-to-day

management and business.

The Operational Committee should report back to the Board on

its decisions or recommendations pursuant to its terms of

reference.

Financial Reporting

The Board, with the support of the Group’s finance department

led by the Financial Controller, is responsible for keeping proper

accounting records and the preparation of the financial statements

of the Company and the Group. In preparing the financial

statements, the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards have

been adopted and the financial statements comply with

accounting standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of

Certified Public Accountants. Appropriate accounting policies

have also been applied consistently.

The Board acknowledge their responsibility to prepare financial

statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view

of the state of affairs of the Group and in presenting the interim

and annual financial statements, and announcements to

shareholders.

The reporting responsibilities of Directors and external auditors

are further set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages

30 to 32 of this annual report.

30

32
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Internal Control and Risk Management

The Board is responsible for the effectiveness of the Group’s

internal control systems. The internal control systems are

designed to meet the Group’s particular needs and the risks to

which it is exposed, and by their nature can only provide

reasonable, but not absolute assurance against misstatement or

loss. The effectiveness of the internal control system was

discussed on an annual basis with the Audit Committee.

Procedures have been set up for safeguarding assets against

unauthorized use or disposition, controll ing over capital

expenditure, maintaining proper accounting records and ensuring

the reliability of financial information used for business and

publication. Qualified management throughout the Group

maintains and monitors the internal control systems on an ongoing

basis.

Pursuant to C.2.1 of the CG Code, an independent accounting

firm had been appointed to conduct an annual review of the

effectiveness of the system of internal control of the Group for

the year under review (the “Report”).

In respect to the findings of the Report, the system of internal

control of the Group regarding the operation of bullion trading

may not ensure that all transactions must be recorded into the

control system immediately and that all transactions must be

supported by client orders and once made, they must immediately

be recorded in the computer system so that the system can be

in a position to monitor the overall position on a real time basis, it

is recommended the Group will strengthen its internal control

systems and procedures in respects of its bullion activities.

C.2.1
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Auditors’ Remuneration

For the year ended 30 April 2007, fees paid to the auditors of the

Company for audit service was HK$2,200,000 and no fee was

payable for other non-audit services.

Communication with Shareholders

The objective of shareholder communication is to provide the

Company’s shareholders with detailed information on the Group

so that they can exercise their rights as shareholders in an

informed manner.

The Group uses several formal channels to ensure fair disclosure

and comprehensive and transparent reporting of its performance

and activities. These include interim and annual reports,

announcements and circulars.

The Group encourages its shareholders to attend annual general

meeting (“AGM”) to ensure a high level of accountability and keep

informed of the Group’s strategy and goals. The Chairman of the

Board and the chairman of all the Committees, or in their absence,

other members of the respective committees, are available to

answer any questions from the shareholders. A separate

resolution is proposed by the Chairman in respect of each issue

to be considered at the AGM, including the re-election of

Directors.

On behalf of the Board

Haywood Cheung

Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 August 2007

2,200,000
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The Board presents its report and the audited financial statements

of the Company and and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”)

for the year ended 30 April 2007.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details

of principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in

note 49 to the financial statements. There were no significant

changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities during

the year and up to the date of this report.

Results and Dividends

The Group’s profit for the year ended 30 April 2007 and the state

of affairs of the Company and of the Group at that date are set

out in the financial statements on pages 33 to 150.

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of

HK$0.006 per share for the year ended 30 April 2007 to the

shareholders whose names appear on the register of members

of the Company on 24 September 2007. This recommendation

has been incorporated in the financial statements as an allocation

of retained earnings within the equity section of the balance sheet.

Summary Financial Information

The summary of the results, assets, liabilities and minority interests

of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from

the published audited financial statements and reclassified as

appropriate, is set out on page 151. The summary does not form

part of the audited financial statements.

49

33 150

0.006

151
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Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of

the Group during the year are set out in notes 15 to the financial

statements.

Share Capital and Share Options

Details in the share capital and share options of the Company

during the year are set out in notes 39 and 40 to the financial

statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the

Company’s bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige

the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing

shareholders.

Purchase, Redemption or Sale of the
Company’s Listed Securities

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,

redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during

the year.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of the

Group are set out in note 41(a) to the financial statements and in

the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 37

and 38, respectively.

15

39 40

41(a) 37 38
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Distributable Reserves

At 30 April 2007, the Company’s reserves available for distribution,

in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 1981 of

Bermuda (as amended), amounted to HK$8,747,000.

Major Customers

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest

customers accounted for 51% of the total revenue excluding gain

from equity investments at fair value through profit or loss for the

year and sales to the largest customer included therein amounted

to 28%.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates

or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the

directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share

capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest

customers.

Directors

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date

of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Haywood Cheung (Chairman)

Mr. Chan Hok Ching (Acting Managing Director)

Mr. Cheung Tak Kwai, Stanley

Mr. So Pak Kwai

Dr. Chang Si-Chung

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Chan Ka Ling, Edmond

Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin

Mr. Wong Yu Choi

All of the directors (including Independent Non-executive

Directors) are appointed for a specific term but subject to

retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general

meeting in accordance with the bye-laws of the Company.

8,747,000

51%

28%

5%
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In accordance with bye-law no. 87(1) and 87(2) of the Company’s

bye-laws, Mr. Chan Ka Ling, Edmond, Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin

and Mr. Wong Yu Choi will retire by rotation and, being eligible,

will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual

general meeting.

Directors’ Biographies

Executive Directors

Mr. Haywood CHEUNG (“Mr. Cheung”), aged 54, is the son of

Mr. Cheung Yan Lung, the Honorary Chairman of the Company,

and the brother of Mr. Stanley Cheung, an Executive Director of

the Company. He joined the Company in July 1997 as an

Executive Director and is now the Chairman of the Company. He

has over 25 years’ experience in metals trading, securities and

futures brokerage and forex dealing in Hong Kong. Mr. Cheung

also has extensive business connections in Hong Kong and

Mainland China. He has served as the President of the New

Territories General Chamber of Commerce, and the Vice President

of the Executive and Supervisory Committee of the Chinese Gold

& Silver Exchange Society. Mr. Cheung is also a director of a

number of subsidiaries of the Company and Haywood Shares

Holding Limited, a company interested in the shares of the

Company which is discloseable under the provision of Divisions

2 and 3 of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

Mr. CHAN Hok Ching (“Mr. Chan”), aged 44, joined the Group in

2002 as the general manager and has been an Executive Director

and Acting Managing Director of the Company since January

2006. Mr. Chan has over 21 years’ experience in banking and

financial industry. He has served as a director of the New

Territories General Chamber of Commerce. Mr. Chan is also a

director of a number of subsidiaries of the Company. He is

responsible for the strategic planning and day-to-day

management of the Group.

87(1) 87(2)

54

Haywood Shares Holding Limited

XV 2 3

44
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Mr. CHEUNG Tak Kwai, Stanley (“Mr. Stanley Cheung”), aged

48, is the son of Mr. Cheung Yan Lung, the Honorary Chairman

of the Company, and the brother of Mr. Haywood Cheung, the

Chairman and Executive Director of the Company. He has been

the Executive Director of the Company since January 2006. Mr.

Stanley Cheung obtained a bachelor degree of Commerce from

McGill University in Canada in 1981. He has over 26 years’

experience in banking, financing, securities and futures brokerage

and forex dealing. Mr. Stanley Cheung is the responsible officer

of Lee Fung Hong (Cheung’s) Forex Dealers Limited which is an

associate of the Company and is a licensed corporation to carry

out the regulated activity of leveraged foreign exchange trading.

He is also a director of a number of subsidiaries and associates

of the Company. Mr. Stanley Cheung is in charge of the provision

of financial services including securities brokerage and forex

dealing.

Mr. SO Pak Kwai (“Mr. So”), aged 67, joined the Group in 1988.

He is an Executive Director of the Company and a director of a

number of subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. So is in charge of

project development and strategic investment in the Mainland

China. He has over 43 years’ experience in non-ferrous metals

trading, gained mostly in Mainland China.

Dr. CHANG Si-Chung (“Dr. Chang”), aged 46, has been an

Executive Director of the Company since July 2003. Dr. Chang is

a well-known serial entrepreneur and industry leader in the field

of LCD components. He is also the founder of two public

companies in Taiwan, namely Helix Technology, Inc (“Helix”) and

Sin Tek Photronic Corporation (“Sin Tek”). Prior to the founding

of Helix and Sin Tek, Dr. Chang was an Associate Professor at

the National Tsing Hua University and a Senior Research Chemist

at Dow Chemical Corporation in the United States of America.

48

McGill University

67

46

Dow
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHAN Ka Ling, Edmond (“Mr. E Chan”), aged 48, has been

an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since

September 2001. Mr. E Chan is a certified public accountant in

Hong Kong and a partner of Chan and Chan, a firm of certified

public accountants practicing in Hong Kong. Mr. E Chan is now

the independent non-executive director of Tack Hsin Holdings

Limited (stock code: 611) and Gay Giano International Group

Limited (stock code: 686), companies listed on the Main Board

of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “SEHK”).

Mr. HONG Po Kui, Martin (“Mr. Hong”), aged 57, has been an

Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since

November 2004. Mr. Hong has been practicing as a solicitor of

the High Court of Hong Kong for over 31 years and is a notary

public in Hong Kong. Mr. Hong is now the senior partner of the

solicitors f irm of Lau, Chan & Ko. Mr. Hong is also the

Commissioner of Hong Kong Road Safety Patrol. Mr. Hong is

now an independent non-executive director of Sau San Tong

Holdings Limited (stock code: 8200) and Fulbond Holdings

Limited (stock code: 1041) being companies listed on the Growth

Enterprise Market and the Main Board of the SEHK.

Mr. WONG Yu Choi (“Mr. Wong”), aged 50, has been an

Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since

November 2004. Mr. Wong is a member of the Board of Directors

of the New Territories General Chamber of Commerce and is

currently a Councillor of Yuen Long District Council, the Chairman

of the Committee of Tin Shui Wai North District, a member of the

Board of Directors of China Development and Services Fund and

a Commander of Civil Aid Service of Hong Kong. He has also

participated in various charitable institutes and organisations.

Directors’ Service Contracts

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual

general meeting has a service contract with the Company which

is not determinable by the Company within one year without

payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

48

611 Gay Giano International Group

Limited 686

57

8200

1041

50
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Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Save as disclosed in note 48 to the financial statements, no

director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any

contract of significance to the business of the Group to which

the Company or any of its holding companies and subsidiaries

was a party during the year.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Interests and Long Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

At 30 April 2007, the interests and long positions of the Directors

and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying

shares and debentures of the Company or its associated

corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and

Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”))as recorded in the register kept

by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise

notified to the Company and the SEHK pursuant to the Model

Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers

(the “Model Code”) were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company

Number of issued ordinary shares of

HK$0.01 each in the Company

0.01

Interest as Interest of Approximate

beneficial controlled percentage of

owner corporation shareholding

Notes Total

Name of Director

Mr. Haywood Cheung (a) – 323,125,127 323,125,127 53.18

Mr. Chan Hok Ching 170,000 – 170,000 0.03

Mr. So Pak Kwai 10,000 – 10,000 0.002

Mr. Chan Ka Ling, Edmond (b) – 50,000 50,000 0.008

48

XV

352
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Notes:

(a) The shares under “Interest of controlled corporation” comprise:

(i) 310,325,127 shares held by Haywood Shares Holding

Limited, which is 99.99% owned by Mr. Haywood Cheung;

and

(ii) 12,800,000 shares held by iWin Limited, which is 75%

owned by Mr. Haywood Cheung.

(b) The shares under “Interest of controlled corporation” were owned

by Mr. Chan Ka Ling, Edmond through his personal investment

company, E-Source Holdings Limited.

Save as disclosed above and in the Section under the heading

“Directors’ rights to acquire shares or debentures” below, as at

30 April 2007, none of the directors or the chief executive of the

Company had any interest and short positions in the shares,

underlying shares or debentures of the Company or its associated

corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as

recorded in the register kept by the Company under Section 352

of the SFO or otherwise notified to the Company and the SEHK

pursuant to the Model Code.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or
Debentures

Save as disclosed in the share option scheme disclosures in note

40 to the financial statements, at no time during the year were

rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares

in or debentures of the Company granted to any director or their

respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or were any

such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its

holding companies and subsidiaries a party to any arrangement

to enable the directors to acquire such rights in any other body

corporate.

(a)

(i) 9 9 . 9 9 %

Haywood Shares Holding Limited

310,325,127

(ii) 7 5 % i W i n

Limited 12,800,000

(b)

E-Source Holdings

Limited

XV

352

40
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Discloseable Interests and Short
Positions of Substantial Shareholders
Under the SFO

As at 30 April 2007, the following persons (other than a director

of the Company) had interests or short positions in the shares

and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register

kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company

Number of Approximate
shares percentage of

interested shareholding
Note Capacity

Name of shareholder

Haywood Shares Holding Limited Haywood Shares Holding Limited (a) 310,325,127 Beneficial owner 51.08

Note:

(a) These interests are also included as interest of controlled

corporation of Mr. Haywood Cheung, as disclosed under the

heading “Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and long

positions in shares, underlying shares and debentures” above.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 April 2007, there was no person

had registered an interest or short position in the shares or

underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register

kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

Related Party Transactions

Details of the related party transactions are set out in note 48 to

the financial statements.

336

(a)

336

48
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Disclosures pursuant to Rule 13.22 of
the Listing Rules

In accordance with the disclosure requirements of Rule 13.22 of

the Listing Rules, details in respect of financial assistance given

to affiliated companies are set out in note 19 to the financial

statements.

Corporate Governance

A report on the principal corporate governance practices adopted

by the Company is set out on pages 10 to 17 of this report.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company

and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the

Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as

at the date of this report.

Post Balance Sheet Events

Details of the significant post balance sheet events of the Group

are set out in note 51 to the financial statements.

Audit Committee

The audit committee of the Company was established in

accordance with the requirements of Rule 3.21 of the Listing

Rules, for the purposes of reviewing and providing supervision

over the Group’s financial reporting process and internal control

systems, and compliance with the relevant rules and regulations.

The audit committee comprises the three Independent Non-

executive Directors of the Company.

13.22

13.22

19

10 17

25%

51

3.21
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Auditors

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their reappointment as

auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming

annual general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Haywood Cheung

Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 August 2007
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To the shareholders of

Simsen International Corporation Limited

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of Simsen International

Corporation Limited set out on pages 33 to 150, which comprise

the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 30 April

2007, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated

statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow

statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant

accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation

and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements

in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards

issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants

(the “HKICPA”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,

implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the

preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial

statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting

policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable

in the circumstances.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial

statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to you,

as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda

Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not

assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other

person for the contents of this report.

33 150

90
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Except as described in the basis for qualified opinion paragraphs,

we conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards

on Auditing issued by the HKICPA. Those standards require that

we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the

audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial

statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence

about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement,

including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement

of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In

making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal

control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair

presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not

for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of

the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the

appropr iateness of  account ing pol ic ies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,

as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial

statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Basis for qualified opinion

Due to the absence of adequate effective controls and a system

malfunction identified in a division of Lee Fung Hong (Cheung’s)

Bullion Limited (“Cheung’s Bullion”), a subsidiary of the Group,

during the year ended 30 April 2007, we were unable to ascertain

the completeness and appropriate classification of the bullion

transactions that occurred during the year. In particular, Cheung’s

Bullion entered into certain transactions which resulted in a net

trading loss of HK$23,736,000 and a net fair value gain of

HK$694,000 for its gold bullion operations for the year ended 30

April 2007, and accounts receivable and accounts payable of

HK$149,000 and HK$559,000, respectively, as at 30 April 2007.

23,736,000

694,000

149,000

559,000
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We were unable to obtain sufficient reliable evidence to satisfy

ourselves as to the completeness and the appropriate

classification and disclosures of these amounts as included in

the consolidated balance sheet as at 30 April 2007 and the

consolidated income statement for the year then ended. Cheung’s

Bullion recorded net trading loss of HK$2,753,000 and net fair

value loss of HK$3,057,000 for the year ended 30 April 2007

and accounts receivable and accounts payable of HK$511,000

and HK$6,818,000, respectively, as at 30 April 2007.

Any adjustments found to be necessary in respect of the matters

set out above would have a consequential impact on the Group’s

profit for the year ended 30 April 2007, the Group’s net assets

position as at 30 April 2007 and the classification and disclosures

thereof in the financial statements.

Qualified opinion arising from limitation of audit scope

In our opinion, except for the effects of any adjustments, if any,

as might have been determined to be necessary had we been

able to satisfy ourselves as to the revenue from the net trading

loss and the net fair value gain on bullion transactions for the

year, and the related receivables and payables as at 30 April 2007,

the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of

affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 30 April 2007 and

of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in

accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and

have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28 August 2007

2,753,000 3,057,000

511 ,000

6,818,000
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 / 

2007 2006

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

CONTINUING OPERATIONS
REVENUE 5 124,445 173,120

Other income 5 4,686 2,682
Administrative expenses (67,531) (64,042)
Gain on disposal of an investment

property – 2,000
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 43(a) 8,775 5,336
Change in fair value of an investment

property – 715
Other operating

income/(expenses), net (2,099) 3,765
Finance costs 7 (2,379) (1,165)
Share of profits and losses of:

Jointly-controlled entities (1,815) (2,600)
Associates 5 (1,024)

PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6 64,087 118,787

Tax 10 (38) 24

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM
CONTINUING OPERATIONS 64,049 118,811

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
Profit for the year from discontinued

operations 12 5,203 37,333

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 69,252 156,144

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company 11 69,203 156,193
Minority interests 49 (49)

69,252 156,144

DIVIDENDS 13
Interim – 3,038
Proposed final 4,977 3,645

4,977 6,683
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Notes 2007 2006

EARNINGS PER SHARE

ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY

EQUITY HOLDERS OF

THE COMPANY 14

Basic

– For profit for the year – HK11.39 cents HK25.71 cents 

– For profit from continuing – 

operations HK10.54 cents HK19.56 cents 

Diluted

– For profit for the year – N/A N/A 

– For profit from continuing – 

operations N/A N/A 
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 / 

2007 2006

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 15 34,599 33,304
Goodwill 16 1,498 –
Other long term assets 17 13,289 4,613
Intangible assets 18 2,163 2,163
Interests in jointly-controlled entities 20 – 12,163
Interests in associates 21 – –
Available-for-sale investments 22 136 278
Accounts receivable 25 – 117

Total non-current assets 51,685 52,638

CURRENT ASSETS
Due from a related party 23 178 –
Inventories 24 130 130
Gold on hand 386 368
Accounts receivable 25 43,792 27,433
Loans receivable 26 – 17,851
Prepayments, deposits and other

receivables 27 7,863 45,919
Equity investments at fair value

through profit or loss 28 184,560 119,737
Bank trust account balances 29 102,131 40,624
Pledged bank deposits 30 3,594 3,000
Cash and cash equivalents 30 67,889 40,789

410,523 295,851
Asset of a disposal group classified

as held for sale 12 – 1,062

Total current assets 410,523 296,913

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 31 134,103 65,795
Other payables and accruals 32 8,384 18,040
Promissory note 33 4,036 –
Interest-bearing bank and other

borrowings 34 1,708 9,726
Finance leases payable 35 378 221
Tax payable 10 8,753
Due to minority shareholders 36 1,412 –

Total current liabilities 150,031 102,535

NET CURRENT ASSETS 260,492 194,378

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES 312,177 247,016
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2007 2006

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Interest-bearing bank and other

borrowings 34 9,894 10,973

Finance leases payable 35 664 162

Deferred tax liabilities 37 332 303

Provision for long service payments 38 3,975 3,159

Total non-current liabilities 14,865 14,597

Net assets 297,312 232,419

EQUITY

Equity attributable to equity holders

of the Company

Issued capital 39 6,076 6,076

Reserves 41(a) 286,249 222,472

Proposed final dividend 13 4,977 3,645

Total equity attributable to equity

holders of the Company 297,302 232,193

Minority interests 10 226

Total equity 297,312 232,419

Haywood Cheung Chan Hok Ching

Director Director
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 / 

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

Retained

Share Currency earnings/ Proposed

Issued premium translation (accumulated final Minority

capital account Contributed General reserve losses) dividend interests Total

surplus reserve Total equity

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

At 1 May 2005 6,076 269,608 – 2,702 73 (199,790 ) – 78,669 – 78,669

Exchange realignment – – – – 403 – – 403 – 403

Total income and expenses

recognised directly in equity – – – – 403 – – 403 – 403

Profit for the year – – – – – 156,193 – 156,193 (49) 156,144

Total income and expense

for the year – – – – 403 156,193 – 156,596 (49) 156,547

Release of reserves upon

disposal of interest in

an associate – – – (1,752 ) (34 ) 1,752 – (34) – (34 )

Transfer to

contributed surplus 41(b) – (269,608 ) 269,608 – – – – – – –

Transfer to the retained

earnings – – (264,376 ) – – 264,376 – – – –

Disposal of interest in

a subsidiary – – – – – – – – 275 275

Interim 2006 dividend 13 – – – – – (3,038 ) – (3,038 ) – (3,038 )

Proposed final 2006 dividend 13 – – – – – (3,645 ) 3,645 – – –

At 30 April 2006 6,076 – 5,232 950 442 215,848 3,645 232,193 226 232,419
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Attributable to equity holders of the Company

Currency Proposed

Issued translation final Minority

capital Contributed General reserve Retained dividend interests Total

surplus reserve earnings Total equity

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

At 1 May 2006 6,076 5,232 950 442 215,848 3,645 232,193 226 232,419

Exchange realignment – – – 658 – – 658 – 658

Total income and expenses

recognised directly in equity – – – 658 – – 658 – 658

Profit for the year – – – – 69,203 – 69,203 49 69,252

Total income and expense for the year – – – 658 69,203 – 69,861 49 69,910

Release of reserves upon disposal of

interest in a jointly-controlled entity – – (950 ) (1,107 ) 950 – (1,107 ) – (1,107 )

Interest in a subsidiary – – – – – – – 10 10

Disposal of interest in a subsidiary – – – – – – – (275 ) (275 )

Final 2006 dividend 13 – – – – – (3,645 ) (3,645 ) – (3,645 )

Proposed final 2007 dividend 13 – – – – (4,977 ) 4,977 – – –

At 30 April 2007 6,076 5,232* –* (7)* 281,024* 4,977 297,302 10 297,312

*

286 ,249 ,000

222,472,000

* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of

HK$286,249,000 (2006: HK$222,472,000) in the consolidated

balance sheet.
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 / 

2007 2006

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

CASH FLOWS FROM

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax:

From continuing operations 64,087 118,787

From discontinued operations
12 5,203 37,333

Adjustments for:

Finance costs 7 2,379 1,165
Bank interest income 5 (2,825) (1,446)
Share of profits and losses of:

Jointly-controlled entities 2,943 1,956
Associates (5) (9,337)

Dividend income from

listed investments 5 (402) –
Depreciation 6 4,100 3,516
Loss on disposal/write-off of items

of property, plant and equipment 6 8 19

Impairment of items of property,
plant and equipment 6 18 –

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 43(a) (8,775) (5,336)

Fair value gain on equity investments
at fair value through profit or loss 5 (67,310) (101,307)

Impairment on/(write-back of

impairment on) accounts receivable 6 369 (5,459)
Change in fair value of an

investment property – (715)

Gain on disposal of an
investment property – (2,000)

Provision for long service payments 6 1,278 348

Impairment/(reversal of impairment)
of an interest in an associate 6 (715) 1,678

Gain on disposal of an associate from

a discontinued operation – (26,328)
Gain on disposal of a jointly-controlled

entity from a discontinued operation 12 (6,331) –

Impairment of an interest in a
jointly-controlled entity 6 2,419 –

(3,559) 12,874
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2007 2006

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

Increase in other long term assets – (306)

Decrease in equity investments at

fair value through profit or loss 3,576 11,754

Decrease/(increase) in

accounts receivable (8,911) 4,088

Decrease/(increase) in

loans receivable 17,851 (575)

Decrease/(increase) in prepayments,

deposits and other receivables 39,421 (43,084)

Increase in inventories – (130)

Increase in bank trust

account balances (16,635) (26,867)

Increase in gold on hand (18) (123)

Increase in accounts payable 22,855 36,958

Decrease in provision for long

service payments 38 (462) (858)

(Decrease)/increase in other

payables and accruals (10,601) 12,584

Increase in amount due from

a related party (178) –

Increase in amounts due to

minority shareholders 1,147 –

Cash generated from operations 44,486 6,315

Interest received 2,825 768

Hong Kong profits tax refunded 1 391

Net cash inflow from

operating activities 47,312 7,474
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Year ended 30 April 2007

 / 

2007 2006

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

CASH FLOWS FROM

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchases of items of property,

plant and equipment (3,675) (2,363)

Investment in a jointly-controlled entity (4,036) (600)

Dividends received from

listed investments 402 –

Dividend received from an associate 720 1,484

Acquisition of subsidiaries 42 (182) –

Increase in other long term deposit (604) –

Acquisition of an unlisted

equity investment (136) –

Proceeds from disposal of

investment properties – 6,000

Proceeds from disposal of

items of property,

plant and equipment – 120

Proceeds from disposal

of subsidiaries 43(a) 300 287

Proceeds from disposal of associates – 18,112

Proceeds from disposal of a

jointly-controlled entity 5,311 –

Increase in amounts due

from associates – (63)

Increase in amounts due to

jointly-controlled entities 130 429

Advances of loans to a

jointly-controlled entity (2,250) –

Advances of loans to an associate – (900)

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from

investing activities (4,020) 22,506
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2007 2006

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

CASH FLOWS FROM

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Dividends paid (3,645) (3,038)

Repayment of bank loans (9,097) (7,994)

New bank loans – 16,000

Repayment of loans from directors – (170)

Capital element of finance lease

rental payments (477) (316)

Interest paid 7 (2,379) (1,165)

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from

financing activities (15,598) 3,317

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND

CASH EQUIVALENTS 27,694 33,297

Cash and cash equivalents at

beginning of year 43,789 10,492

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AT END OF YEAR 71,483 43,789

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances 30 67,889 40,789

Time deposits with original

maturity of less than

three months when acquired,

pledged as security

for bank overdraft facilities 30 3,594 3,000

71,483 43,789
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 / 

2007 2006

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 15 54 110
Interests in subsidiaries 19 51,589 70,714

Total non-current assets 51,643 70,824

CURRENT ASSETS
Prepayments, deposits and other

receivables 27 107 18
Cash and cash equivalents 30 120 1,394

Total current assets 227 1,412

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Other payables and accruals

32 829 826
Other borrowings 34 – 8,000

Total current liabilities 829 8,826

NET CURRENT LIABILITIES (602) (7,414)

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES 51,041 63,410

NON-CURRENT LIABILITY
Provision for long service payments 38 249 –

Net assets 50,792 63,410

EQUITY
Issued capital 39 6,076 6,076
Reserves 41(b) 39,739 53,689
Proposed final dividend 13 4,977 3,645

Total equity 50,792 63,410

Haywood Cheung Chan Hok Ching

Director Director
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1. Corporate Information

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in

Bermuda. The head office and principal place of operations

of the Company is situated at 26th Floor, Top Glory Tower,

262 Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.

Details of principal activities of the principal subsidiaries of

the Group are set out in note 49 to the financial statements.

There were no significant changes in the nature of the

Group’s principal activities during the year and up to the

date of the financial statement.

In the opinion of the directors, the parent and the ultimate

holding company of the Group is Haywood Shares Holding

Limited, a company in corporated in the British Virgin

Islands.

2.1 Basis of Preparation

These f inancial statements have been prepared in

accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards

(“HKFRSs”) (which also include Hong Kong Accounting

Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the

Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,

accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and

the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical

cost convention, except for equity investments, which have

been measured at fair value. Non-current assets and

disposal groups held for sale are stated at the lower of the

carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell as further

explained in note 2.4. These financial statements are

presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) and all values are

rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise

indicated.

1.

262

26

49

Haywood Shares Holding

Limited

2.1

2.4
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 / 

2.1 Basis of Preparation (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial

statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year

ended 30 April 2007. The results of subsidiaries are

consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date

on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be

consolidated until the date that such control ceases. All

significant intercompany transactions and balances within

the Group are eliminated on consolidation.

The acquisition of subsidiaries during the year has been

accounted for using the purchase method of accounting.

This method involves allocating the cost of the business

combinations to the fair value of the identifiable assets

acquired, and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed

at the date of acquisition. The cost of the acquisition is

measured at the aggregate of the fair value of the assets

given, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or

assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs directly

attributable to the acquisition.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside

shareholders not held by the Group in the results and net

assets of the Company’s subsidiaries.

2.1
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2.2 Impact of New and Revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards

The Group has adopted the following new and revised

HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial

statements. Except for in certain cases, giving rise to new

and revised accounting policies and additional disclosures,

the adoption of these new and revised standards and

interpretation has had no material effect on these financial

statements.

HKAS 21 Amendment Net Investment in a Foreign Operation

HKAS 39 & HKFRS 4 Financial Guarantee Contracts

Amendments

HKAS 39 Amendment Cash F low Hedge Account ing of

Forecast Intragroup Transactions

HKAS 39 Amendment The Fair Value Option

HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement

contains a Lease

HK(IFRIC)-Int 8 Scope of HKFRS 2

2.2

21

39

4

39

39

4

2

8
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 / 

2.2 Impact of New and Revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(continued)

This principal changes in accounting policies are as follows:

(a) HKAS 21 — The Effects of Changes in Foreign

Exchange Rates

Upon the adoption of the HKAS 21 Amendment

regarding a net investment in a foreign operation, all

exchange differences arising from a monetary item that

form part of the Group’s net investment in a foreign

operation are recognised in a separate component of

equity in the consolidated financial statements

irrespective of the currency in which the monetary item

is denominated. This change has had no material

impact on these financial statements as at 30 April

2007 or 30 April 2006.

(b) HKAS 39 — Financial Instruments: Recognition and

Measurement

(i) Amendment for financial guarantee contracts

This amendment has revised the scope of HKAS

39 to require financial guarantee contracts issued

that are not considered insurance contracts, to

be recognised initially at fair value and to be

remeasured at the higher of the amount

determined in accordance with HKAS 37

“Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent

Assets” and the amount initially recognised less,

when appropriate, cumulative amortisation

recognised in accordance with HKAS 18

“Revenue”. The adoption of this amendment has

had no material impact on these financial

statements.

2.2

(a) 21

21

(b) 39

(i)

39

37

18



Notes to Financial Statements

48

30 April 2007

S
im

se
n

 In
te

rn
a

tio
n

a
l C

o
rp

o
ra

tio
n

 L
im

ite
d

A
nnual R

ep
ort 2006/2007

2.2 Impact of New and Revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(continued)

(b) HKAS 39 — Financial Instruments: Recognition and

Measurement (continued)

(ii) Amendment for cash flow hedge accounting of

forecast intragroup transactions

This amendment has revised HKAS 39 to permit

the foreign currency risk of a highly probable

intragroup forecast transaction to qualify as a

hedged item in a cash flow hedge, provided that

the transaction is denominated in a currency

other than the functional currency of the entity

entering into that transaction and that the foreign

currency risk will affect the consolidated income

statement. As the Group currently has no such

transactions, the amendment has had no effect

on these financial statements.

(iii) Amendment for the fair value option

This amendment has changed the definition of a

financial instrument classified as fair value

through profit or loss and has restricted the use

of the option to designate any financial asset or

any financial liability to be measured at fair value

through the consolidated income statement. The

Group had not previously used this option, and

hence the amendment has had no effect on the

financial statements.

2.2

(b) 39

(ii)

39

(iii)
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2.2 Impact of New and Revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(continued)

(c) HK( IFRIC)- In t  4  — Determin ing whether  an

Arrangement contains a Lease

The Group has adopted this interpretation as of 1 May

2006, which provides guidance in determining whether

arrangements contain a lease to which lease

account ing must be appl ied. The Group has

determined based on this interpretation that certain

arrangements of the Group contained leases and

accordingly, the Group has treated them in accordance

with HKAS 17 “Leases”. However, the adoption of this

interpretation has had no material impact on these

financial statements.

(d) HK(IFRIC)-Int 8 — Scope of HKFRS 2

The Group has adopted this interpretation as of 1 May

2006, which provides guidance in considering whether

transact ions involv ing the issuance of equity

instruments — where the identifiable consideration

received is less than the fair value of the equity

instruments issued — to establish whether or not they

fall within the scope of HKFRS 2. However, the

adoption of this interpretation has had no material

impact on these financial statements.

2.2

(c)

4

17

(d) -

8

2

2



Notes to Financial Statements

50

30 April 2007

S
im

se
n

 In
te

rn
a

tio
n

a
l C

o
rp

o
ra

tio
n

 L
im

ite
d

A
nnual R

ep
ort 2006/2007

2.3 Impact of Issued but not yet Effective
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these financial statements.

HKAS 1 Amendment Capital Disclosures

HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives

HK(IFRIC)-Int 10 Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment

HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 HKFRS 2 — Group and Treasury Share
Transactions

HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements

The HKAS 1 Amendment shall be applied for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2007. The revised standard
will affect the disclosures about qualitative information about
the Group’s objectives, policies and processes for managing
capital; quantitative data about what the Company regards
as capital; and compliance with any capital requirements
and the consequences of any non-compliance.

HKFRS 7 shall be applied for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2007. The standard requires disclosures
that enable users of the financial statements to evaluate
the significance of the Group’s financial instruments and
the nature and extent of risks arising from those financial
instruments.

2.3

1

23

7

8

9

10

2
11

12

1

7
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2.3 Impact of Issued but not yet Effective
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

HKFRS 8 shall be applied for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2009. The standard requires the disclosure
of information about the operating segments of the Group,
the products and services provided by the segments, the
geographical areas in which the Group operates, and
revenues from the Group’s major customers. This standard
will supersede HKAS 14 “Segment Reporting”.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 9, HK(IFRIC)-Int 10, HK(IFRIC)-Int 11,
HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 and HKAS 23 (Revised) shall be applied
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2006, 1
November 2006, 1 March 2007, 1 January 2008 and 1
January 2009, respectively.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial
application. So far, it has concluded that while the adoption
of the HKAS 1 Amendment, HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 8 may
result in new or amended disclosures, these new and revised
HKFRSs are unlikely to have a significant impact on the
Group’s results of operations and financial position.

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating
policies the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as
to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
income statement to the extent of dividends received and
receivable. The Company’s interests in subsidiaries are
stated at cost less any impairment losses.

2.3

8

14

9
10

11

12 23

1
7

8

2.4
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Joint ventures

A joint venture is an ent i ty set up by contractual
arrangement, whereby the Group and other parties
undertake an economic activity. The joint venture operates

as a separate entity in which the Group and the other parties
have an interest.

The joint venture agreement between the venturers
stipulates the capital contributions of the joint venture
parties, the duration of the joint venture entity and the basis

on which the assets are to be realised upon its dissolution.
The profits and losses from the joint venture’s operations
and any distributions of surplus assets are shared by the

venturers, either in proportion to their respective capital
contributions, or in accordance with the terms of the joint
venture agreement.

A joint venture is treated as:

(a) a subsidiary, if the Group has unilateral control, directly

or indirectly, over the joint venture;

(b) a jointly-controlled entity, if the Group does not have
unilateral control, but has joint control, directly or
indirectly, over the joint venture;

(c) an associate, if the Group does not have unilateral or

joint control, but holds, directly or indirectly, generally
not less than 20% of the joint venture’s registered
capital and is in a position to exercise significant

influence over the joint venture; or

(d) an equity investment accounted for in accordance with

HKAS 39, if the Group holds, directly or indirectly, less
than 20% of the joint venture’s registered capital and
has neither joint control of, nor is in a position to

exercise significant influence over, the joint venture.

2.4

(a)

(b)

(c)

20%

(d) 39

20%
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Jointly-controlled entities

A jointly-controlled entity is a joint venture that is subject to

joint control, resulting in none of the participating parties

having unilateral control over the economic activity of the

jointly-controlled entity.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and

reserves of jointly-controlled entities is included in the

consolidated income statement and consolidated reserves,

respectively. The Group’s interests in jointly-controlled

entities are stated in the consolidated balance sheet at the

Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of

accounting, less any impairment losses.

When an investment in a jointly-controlled entity is classified

as held for sale, it is accounted for in accordance with

HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and

Discontinued Operations”.

Associates

An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiary or a jointly-

controlled entity, in which the Group has a long term interest

of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights

and over which it is in a position to exercise significant

influence.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and

reserves of associates is included in the consolidated

income statement and consolidated reserves, respectively.

The Group’s interests in associates are stated in the

consolidated balance sheet at the Group’s share of net

assets under the equity method of accounting, less any

impairment losses.

2.4

5

20%
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Associates (continued)

The results of associates are included in the Company’s

income statement to the extent of dividends received and

receivable. The Company’s interests in associates are

treated as non-current assets and are stated at cost less

any impairment losses.

When an investment in an associate is classified as held for

sale, it is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-

current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations”.

Goodwill

Goodwil l arising on the acquisit ion of subsidiaries,

associates and jointly-controlled entities represents the

excess of the cost of the business combination over the

Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquirees’

identifiable assets acquired, and liabilities and contingent

liabilities assumed as at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised in the

consolidated balance sheet as an asset, initially measured

at cost and subsequently at cost less any accumulated

impairment losses.

The carrying amount of goodwill is reviewed for impairment

annually or more frequently if events or changes in

circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be

impaired.

2.4

5
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Goodwill (continued)

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in

a business combination is, from the acquisition date,

allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or

groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit

from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of

whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned

to those units or groups of units. Each unit or group of units

to which the goodwill is so allocated:

• represents the lowest level within the Group at which

the goodwill is monitored for internal management

purposes; and

• is not larger than a segment based on either the

Group’s primary or the Group’s secondary reporting

format determined in accordance with HKAS 14

“Segment Reporting”.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable

amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-

generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the

recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of

cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount, an

impairment loss is recognised.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit (group

of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within

that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the

operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of

the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal

of the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance

is measured based on the relative values of the operation

disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit

retained.

An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed

in a subsequent period.

2.4

14
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual

impairment testing for an asset is required (other than

inventories, financial assets, goodwill and disposal group

classified as held for sale), the asset’s recoverable amount

is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is calculated

as the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value

in use and its fair value less costs to sell, and is determined

for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate

cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other

assets or groups of assets, in which case, the recoverable

amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which

the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount

of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing

value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted

to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that

reflects current market assessments of the time value of

money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment

loss is charged to the income statement in the period in

which it arises.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether

there is any indication that previously recognised impairment

losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such

indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A

previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than

goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the

estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that

asset, however not to an amount higher than the carrying

amount that would have been determined (net of any

depreciation/amortisation), had no impairment loss been

recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such

impairment loss is credited to the income statement in the

period in which it arises.

2.4
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party, directly or indirectly through one or more

intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled by, or is under

common control with, the Group; (ii) has an interest in

the Group that gives it significant influence over the

Group; or (iii) has joint control over the Group;

(b) the party is an associate;

(c) the party is a jointly-controlled entity;

(d) the party is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group;

(e) the party is a close member of the family of any

individual referred to in (a) or (d);

(f) the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled

or significantly influenced by or for which significant

voting power in such entity resides with, directly or

indirectly, any individual referred to in (d) or (e); or

(g) the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the

benefit of the employees of the Group, or of any entity

that is a related party of the Group.

2.4

(a)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e) (a) (d)

(f) (d) (e)

(g)
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, are stated at cost less

accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. When

an item of property, plant and machinery is classified as

held for sale or when it is part of a disposal group classified

as held for sale, it is not depreciated and is accounted for

in accordance with HKFRS 5, as further explained in the

accounting policy for “Non-current assets and disposal

groups held for sale”. The cost of an item of property, plant

and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly

attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working

condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure

incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have

been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,

is normally charged to the income statement in the period

in which it is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly

demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an

increase in the future economic benefits expected to be

obtained from the use of an item of property, plant and

equipment, and where the cost of the item can be measured

reliably, the expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost

of that asset or as a replacement.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write

off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment

to its residual value over its estimated useful life. The

principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings 4% or over the lease

terms, whichever

is shorter

Leasehold improvements 20% to 25% or over

the lease terms,

whichever is shorter

Furniture, equipment and 20% to 50%

motor vehicles

2.4

5

4%

20% 25%

20% 50%



59

Notes to Financial Statements

30 April 2007

 / 

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

(continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment

have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated

on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is

depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method

are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance

sheet date.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised

upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are

expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on

disposal or retirement recognised in the income statement

in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference

between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount

of the relevant asset.

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as

held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered

principally through a sale transaction rather than through

continuing use. For this to be the case, the asset or disposal

group must be available for immediate sale in its present

condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary

for the sale of such assets or disposal groups and its sale

must be highly probable.

Non-current assets and disposal groups (other than financial

assets) classified as held for sale are measured at the lower

of their carrying amounts and fair values less costs to sell.

2.4
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either

finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are

amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for

impairment whenever there is an indication that the

intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period

and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a

finite useful life are reviewed at least at each balance sheet

date.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for

impairment annually either individually or at the cash-

generating unit level. Such intangible assets are not

amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset with an

indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether

indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If

not, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite

to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks

of ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title,

are accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a

finance lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at

the present value of the minimum lease payments and

recorded together with the obligation, excluding the interest

element, to reflect the purchase and financing. Assets held

under capitalised finance leases are included in property,

plant and equipment, and depreciated over the shorter of

the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets.

The finance costs of such leases are charged to the income

statement so as to provide a constant periodic rate of charge

over the lease terms.

2.4
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Leases (continued)

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a

financing nature are accounted for as finance leases, but

are depreciated over their estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of

ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted

for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessee,

rentals payable under the operating leases are charged to

the income statement on the straight-line basis over the

lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are

initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the

straight-line basis over the lease terms. When the lease

payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and

buildings elements, the entire lease payments are included

in the cost of the land and buildings as a finance lease in

property, plant and equipment.

Investments and other financial assets

Financial assets in the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as

financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans

and receivables, and available-for-sale financial assets, as

appropriate. When financial assets are recognised initially,

they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of

investments not at fair value through profit or loss, directly

attributable transaction costs. The Group considers whether

a contract contains an embedded derivative when the Group

first becomes a party to it. The embedded derivatives are

separated from the host contract which is not measured at

fair value through profit or loss when the analysis shows

that the economic characteristics and risks of embedded

derivatives are not closely related to those of the host

contract.

2.4

39
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

The Group determines the classification of its financial assets

after initial recognition and, where allowed and appropriate,

re-evaluates this designation at the balance sheet date.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are

recognised on the trade date, that is, the date the Group

commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way

purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets

that require delivery of assets within the period generally

established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include

financial assets held for trading. Financial assets are

classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the

purpose of sale in the near term. Gains or losses on

investments held for trading are recognised in the income

statement.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets

with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in

an active market. Such assets are subsequently carried at

amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Amortised cost is calculated taking into account any

discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees that

are an integral part of the effective interest rate and

transaction costs. Gains and losses are recognised in the

income statement when the loans and receivables are

derecognised or impaired, as wel l  as through the

amortisation process.

2.4
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial

assets in listed and unlisted equity securities that are

designated as available for sale or are not classified in any

of the other two categories. After initial recognition, available-

for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value, with gains

or losses recognised as a separate component of equity

until the investment is derecognised or until the investment

is determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative

gain or loss previously reported in equity is included in the

income statement.

When the fair value of unlisted equity securities cannot be

reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range of

reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that

investment or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates

within the range cannot be reasonably assessed and used

in estimating fair value, such securities are stated at cost

less any impairment losses.

Fair value

The fair value of investments that are actively traded in

organised financial markets is determined by reference to

quoted market bid prices at the close of business at the

balance sheet date. For investments where there is no active

market, fair value is determined using valuation techniques.

Such techniques include using recent arm’s length market

transactions; reference to the current market value of

another instrument which is substantially the same; a

discounted cash flow analysis; and other valuation models.

2.4

(a)

(b)
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether

there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a

group of financial assets is impaired.

Assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on

loans and receivables carried at amortised cost has been

incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the

difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the

present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding

future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted

at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.,

the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced either directly

or through the use of an allowance account. The amount of

the impairment loss is recognised in the income statement.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of

impairment exists individually for financial assets that are

individually significant, and individually or collectively for

financial assets that are not individually significant. If it is

determined that no objective evidence of impairment exists

for an individually assessed financial asset, whether

significant or not, the asset is included in a group of financial

assets with similar credit risk characteristics and that group

is collectively assessed for impairment. Assets that are

individually assessed for impairment and for which an

impairment loss is or continues to be recognised are not

included in a collective assessment of impairment.

2.4
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment

loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively

to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,

the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed. Any

subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in

the income statement, to the extent that the carrying value

of the asset does not exceed its amortised cost at the

reversal date.

In relation to accounts receivable, a provision for impairment

is made when there is objective evidence (such as the

probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties

of the debtor) that the Group will not be able to collect all of

the amounts due under the original terms of an invoice.

The carrying amount of the receivables is reduced through

the use of an allowance account. Impaired debts are

derecognised when they are assessed as uncollectible.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on an

unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at fair value

because its fair value cannot be reliably measured has been

incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the

difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the

present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at

the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.

Impairment losses on these assets are not reversed.

2.4
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount

comprising the difference between its cost (net of any

principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair value,

less any impairment loss previously recognised in the income

statement, is transferred from equity to the income

statement. Impairment losses on equity instruments

classified as available for sale are not reversed through the

income statement.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial

asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is

derecognised where:

• the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have

expired;

• the Group retains the rights to receive cash flows from

the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay them

in full without material delay to a third party under a

“pass-through” arrangement; or

• the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash

flows from the asset and either (a) has transferred

substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

(b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially

all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has

transferred control of the asset.

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash

flows from an asset and has neither transferred nor retained

substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor

transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to

the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the asset.

2.4

(a)

(b)
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (including

interest-bearing bank and other borrowings)

Financial liabilities including accounts payable, promissory

note, other payables and accruals, amounts due to minority

shareholders and interest-bearing bank and other

borrowings are initially stated at fair value less directly

attributable transaction costs and are subsequently

measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest

method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial,

in which case they are stated at cost.

Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement

when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the

amortisation process.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts in the scope of HKAS 39 are

accounted for as financial liabilities. A financial guarantee

contract is recognised initially at its fair value plus transaction

costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue

of the financial guarantee contract, except when such

contract is recognised at fair value through profit or loss.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures the

financial guarantee contract at the higher of (i) the amount

determined in accordance with HKAS 37 “Provisions,

Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”; and (ii) the

amount init ial ly recognised less, when appropriate,

cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with

HKAS 18 “Revenue”.

2.4

39

(i)

37

(ii)

18
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under

the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When existing financial liability is replaced by another from

the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms

of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an

exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of

the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and

the difference between the respective carrying amounts is

recognised in the income statement.

Inventories

Inventories, which represent miscellaneous merchandise for

sale, are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis. Net

realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less

any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and

disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement,

cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and

demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments

which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash

and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in

value, and have a short maturity of generally within three

months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are

repayable on demand and form an integral part of the

Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the balance sheets, cash and cash

equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including

term deposits, which are not restricted as to use.

2.4
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal

or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it

is probable that a future outflow of resources will be required

to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can

be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount

recognised for a provision is the present value at the balance

sheet date of the future expenditures expected to be

required to settle the obligation. The increase in the

discounted present value amount arising from the passage

of time is included in finance costs in the income statement.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax

is recognised in the income statement, or in equity if it relates

to items that are recognised in the same or a different period

directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior

periods are measured at the amount expected to be

recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all

temporary differences at the balance sheet date between

the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying

amounts for financial reporting purposes.

2.4
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabil it ies are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

• where the deferred tax liability arises from goodwill or
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a

transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

• in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, interests in associates

and joint ventures, where the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, carryforward of unused tax credits

and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax

credits and unused tax losses can be utilised except:

• where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible

temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the t ime of the

transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

• in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, interests
in associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred

tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be

available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.

2.4
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at

each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it

is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be

available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be

utilised. Conversely, previously unrecognised deferred tax

assets are reassessed at each balance sheet date and are

recognised to the extent that it is probable that sufficient

taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the

deferred tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax

rates that are expected to apply to the period when the

asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates

(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively

enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if

a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets

against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate

to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

2.4
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can
be measured reliably, on the following bases:

(a) income from the trading of bullion, forex, securities
and futures contracts, on the following bases:

(i) floating gains and losses on bullion, forex,

securities and futures contracts on all open
contracts existing at the balance sheet date are
recognised by translating the contract amounts

at the prices ruling at the balance sheet date and
unrealised gains and losses on securities with
reference to the prices at the balance sheet date;

(ii) profits and losses on trading in bullion, forex,
securities and futures contracts are recognised
on the trade date basis; and

(iii) commission and brokerage income on dealing
in bullion, forex, securities and futures contracts

are recognised when the services are rendered;

(b) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective

interest method by applying the rate that discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial instrument to the net

carrying amount of the financial asset;

(c) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to

receive payment has been established;

(d) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease

terms; and

(e) other services income, when the services are rendered.

2.4

(a)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Employee benefits

Long service payments

Certain of the Group’s employees have completed the

required number of years of service to the Group in order to

be eligible for long service payments under the Hong Kong

Employment Ordinance in the event of the termination of

their employment. The Group is liable to make such

payments in the event that such a terminat ion of

employment meets the circumstances specified in the

Employment Ordinance.

A provision is recognised in respect of the probable future

long service payments expected to be made. The provision

is based on the best estimate of the probable future

payments which have been earned by the employees from

their service to the Group to the balance sheet date.

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory

Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF

Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes

Ordinance, for those employees who are eligible to

participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made

based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries

and are charged to the income statement as they become

payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from

those of the Group in an independently administered fund.

The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the

employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group which operates in Mainland

China are required to participate in a central pension scheme

operated by the local municipal government. The

contributions are charged to the income statement as they

become payable in accordance with the rules of the central

pension scheme.

2.4
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees

under their employment contracts on a calendar year basis.

Under certain circumstances, such leave which remains

untaken as at the balance sheet date is permitted to be

carried forward and utilised by the respective employees in

the following year. An accrual is made at the balance sheet

date for the expected future cost of such paid leave earned

during the year by the employees and carried forward.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as

a separate allocation of retained earnings within the equity

section of the balance sheet, until they have been approved

by the shareholders in a general meeting. When these

dividends have been approved by the shareholders and

declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and

declared. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised

immediately as a liability when they are proposed and

declared.

2.4
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong

dollars, which is the Company’s functional and presentation

currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own

functional currency and items included in the financial

statements of each entity are measured using that functional

currency. Foreign currency transactions are initially recorded

using the functional currency rates ruling at the date of the

transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated

in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional

currency rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date.

All differences are taken to the income statement. Non-

monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost

in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates

at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items

measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated

using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value

was determined.

The functional currency of an overseas jointly-controlled

entity is a currency other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at

the balance sheet date, the assets and liabilities of the entity

is translated into the presentation currency of the Company

at the exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date, and

its income statement is translated into Hong Kong dollars

at the weighted average exchange rates for the year. The

resulting exchange differences are included in a separate

component of equity. On disposal of a foreign entity, the

deferred cumulative amount recognised in equity relating

to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the

income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement,

the cash flows of a jointly-controlled entity are translated

into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the

dates of the cash flows.

2.4
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3. Significant Accounting Judgements
and Estimates

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,

management has made the following judgements, apart

from those involving estimations, which have the most

significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial

statements:

Impairment of assets

The Group has to exercise judgement in determining

whether an asset is impaired or the event previously causing

the asset impairment no longer exists, particularly in

assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred that may affect

the asset value or such event affecting the asset value has

not been in existence; (2) whether the carrying value of an

asset can be supported by the net present value of future

cash flows which are estimated based upon the continued

use of the asset or derecognition; and (3) the appropriate

key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow

projections including whether these cash flow projections

are discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the

assumptions selected by management to determine the level

of impairment, including the discount rate or the growth

rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could

materially affect the net present value used in the impairment

test.

3.

(1)

(2)

(3)
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3. Significant Accounting Judgements
and Estimates (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Long service payments

The Group and the Company had contingent liabilities in

respect of possible future long service payments to
employees under the Employment Ordinance. Management
has to consider whether it is appropriate to recognise the

provision for long service payments.

In making this judgement, the Group considers (i) the

number of current employees who have achieved the
required number of years of service to the Group and the
Company, as at the balance sheet date, in order to be eligible

for long service payments, under the Employment Ordinance
if their employment is terminated in the circumstances
specified; (ii) the average age of those employees; (iii) the
turnover rate of employees; and (iv) the possibility of the

termination of employment of those employees that meet
circumstances specified in the Employment Ordinance
based on the relevant economic and other factors.

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

The available-for-sale financial assets have been stated at
costs less impairment. The impairment assessment was
based on the expected cash flows discounted at current

rates applicable for items with similar terms and risk
characteristics. This impairment assessment requires the
Company to make estimates about expected future cash

flows and discount rates and hence are subject to
uncertainty.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key

sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the

next financial year, are discussed below.

3.

(i)

(ii) (iii)
(iv)
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3. Significant Accounting Judgements
and Estimates (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least

on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value

in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is

allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to

make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from

the cash generating unit and also to choose a suitable

discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those

cash flows.

Impairment of accounts receivable

The Group reviews its accounts receivable portfolio to

assess impairment at least on a quarterly basis. In

determining whether an impairment loss should be recorded

in the income statement, the Group makes judgement as

to whether there is any observable data indicating that there

is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows

from a portfolio of accounts receivable before the decrease

can be identified with an individual account receivable in

that portfolio. This evidence may include observable data

indicating that there has been an adverse change in the

payment status of borrowers in a group, or national or local

economic conditions that correlate with defaults on assets

in the Group. Management uses estimates based on

historical loss experience for assets with credit risk

characteristics and objective evidence of impairment similar

to those in the portfolio when scheduling its future cash

flows. The methodology and assumptions used for

estimating both the amount and timing of future cash flows

are reviewed regularly to reduce any differences between

loss estimates and actual loss experience.

3.
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4. Segment Information

Segment information is presented by way of the Group’s

primary segment reporting basis, by business segment. In

determining the Group’s geographical segments, revenues

are attributed to the segments based on the location of the

customers, and assets are attributed to the segments based

on the location of the assets. No further geographical

segment information is presented as over 90% of the

Group’s revenue is derived from customers based in Hong

Kong, and over 90% of the Group’s assets are located in

Hong Kong.

The Group’s operating businesses are structured and

managed separately, according to the nature of their

operations and the products and services they provide. Each

of the Group’s business segments represents a strategic

business unit that offers products and services which are

subject to risks and returns that are different from those of

other business segments. Summary details of the business

segments are as follows:

(a) the securities segment represents the broking and

dealing of securities and futures contracts, the

provision of margin financing, and results of investment

holding and proprietary trading of securities;

(b) the bullion segment represents the broking and dealing

of bullion contracts;

(c) the forex segment represents the broking and dealing

of forex contracts;

(d) the corporate and others segment comprises loan

f inancing, the provis ion of  management and

consultancy services, and other services together with

corporate income and expense items;

4.

90%

90%

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)



Notes to Financial Statements

80

30 April 2007

S
im

se
n

 In
te

rn
a

tio
n

a
l C

o
rp

o
ra

tio
n

 L
im

ite
d

A
nnual R

ep
ort 2006/2007

4. Segment Information (continued)

(e) the mining segment represents the mining operations

in Mainland China; and

(f) the trading and manufacturing of aluminium products

segment represent the trading and manufacturing of

aluminium products in Mainland China which was

discontinued in the prior year.

Intersegmental sales and transfers are transacted with

reference to the selling prices used for sales made to third

parties at the then prevailing market prices.

The bullion segment was combined with the forex segment

in the prior years. In the opinion of the Directors, it is more

appropriate to separately disclose these two sectors in the

current year due to the significance of the bullion and forex

segments to the Group results and financial position.

Comparative amounts have been reclassified to conform

with the current year presentation.

4.

(e)

(f)
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4. Segment Information (continued)

Business segments

The following tables present revenue, profit/(loss) and certain

asset, liability and expenditure information for the Group’s

business segments for the years ended 30 April 2007 and

2006.

Year ended 30 April 2007

Discontinued
Continuing operations operation

Trading and
manufacturing

of aluminium
Corporate products

Securities Bullion Forex and others Total Consolidated

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Segment revenue:
Sales to external customers 109,285 132 10,273 4,755 124,445 – 124,445
Other revenue 1,129 3 – 1,237 2,369 – 2,369

Total 110,414 135 10,273 5,992 126,814 – 126,814

Segment results 95,613 (6,666) 2,543 (3,350) 88,140 – 88,140

Unallocated interest income
and other income 2,317

Unallocated expenses (29,252)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries – – – 8,775 8,775 – 8,775
Gain on disposal of an interest in

a jointly-controlled entity – – – – – 6,331 6,331
Reversal of impairment of an interest

in an associate – – – 715 715 – 715
Impairment of an interest in a

jointly-controlled entity – – – (2,419) (2,419) – (2,419)
Share of profits and losses of:

Jointly-controlled entities – – (1,632) (183) (1,815) (1,128) (2,943)
Associates – – – 5 5 – 5

Finance costs (2,379)

Profit before tax 69,290
Tax (38)

Profit for the year 69,252

4.
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4. Segment Information (continued)

Business segments (continued)

Year ended 30 April 2007 (continued)

Discontinued
Continuing operations operation

Trading and
manufacturing

of aluminium
Corporate products

Securities Bullion Forex and others Total Consolidated

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Assets and liabilities
Segment assets 292,726 4,081 49,822 44,096 390,725 – 390,725
Unallocated assets 71,483

Total assets – 462,208

Segment liabilities 91,870 7,526 41,922 10,842 152,160 – 152,160
Unallocated liabilities 12,736

Total liabilities – 164,896

Other segment information:
Depreciation 1,186 252 – 2,662 4,100 – 4,100
Impairment/(write-back

of impairment)
on accounts receivable (69) 505 – (67) 369 – 369

Impairment of items of property,
plant and equipment – 18 – – 18 – 18

Disposal/write-off of items of
property, plant and equipment – – 8 – 8 – 8

Capital expenditure 1,282 103 97 3,244 4,726 – 4,726

4.
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4. Segment Information (continued)

Business segments (continued)

Year ended 30 April 2006

Continuing operations Discontinued operations

Trading and
manufacturing

of aluminium
Corporate products

Securities Bullion Forex and others Total Mining Total Consolidated

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Segment revenue: :
Sales to external customers 146,866 24,351 – 1,903 173,120 – – – 173,120
Other revenue 623 – – 1,308 1,931 – – – 1,931

Total 147,489 24,351 – 3,211 175,051 – – – 175,051

Segment results 129,346 18,990 – (5,184) 143,152 – – – 143,152

Unallocated interest income
and other income 751

Unallocated expenses (23,985)
Gain on disposal of

a subsidiary – – – 5,336 5,336 – – – 5,336
Gain on disposal of

an associate – – – – – 26,328 – 26,328 26,328
Impairment of interest in

an associate – – – (1,678) (1,678) – – – (1,678)

Share of profits and losses of:
Jointly-controlled entities – – (2,182) (418) (2,600) – 644 644 (1,956)
Associates – – – (1,024) (1,024) 10,361 – 10,361 9,337

Finance costs (1,165)

Profit before tax 156,120
Tax 24

Profit for the year 156,144

4.
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4. Segment Information (continued)

Business segments (continued)

Year ended 30 April 2006 (continued)

Continuing operations Discontinued operation

Trading and
manufacturing

of aluminium
Corporate products

Securities Bullion Forex and others Total Mining Total Consolidated

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Assets and liabilities
Segment assets 235,252 5,495 – 51,790 292,537 – – – 292,537
Interests in jointly-controlled

entities – – 11,981 182 12,163 – – – 12,163
Assets of a disposal group

classified as held for sale – – – – – – 1,062 1,062 1,062
Unallocated assets 43,789

Total assets 349,551

Segment liabilities 63,635 12,721 – 10,638 86,994 – – – 86,994
Unallocated liabilities 30,138

Total liabilities 117,132

Other segment information:
Depreciation 1,422 45 – 2,049 3,516 – – – 3,516
Write-back of impairment on

accounts receivable (5,459) – – – (5,459) – – – (5,459)
Loss on disposal of items of

property, plant and
equipment – – – 19 19 – – – 19

Change in fair value of an
investment property – – – (715) (715) – – – (715)

Gain on disposal of an
investment property – – – (2,000) (2,000) – – – (2,000)

Capital expenditure 1,373 127 – 920 2,420 – – – 2,420

4.
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5. Revenue and  Other Income

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents

commission and brokerage income from securities, bullion,

forex and futures contracts; profit or loss on trading of

securities and bullion; and gross rental income. An analysis

of the Group’s revenue and other income is as follows:

2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000

Revenue

Continuing operations:

Fees and commission income from

bullion, forex, securities and

futures contract broking 41,350 26,759

Trading gain on bullion, forex, securities

and futures contracts, net 8,491 42,056

Fair value gain on bullion, forex,

securities and futures contracts, net 67,310 101,307

Interest income from loan and margin

financing activities 3,452 1,590

Management fee income – 313

Gross rental income 12 272

Others 3,830 823

124,445 173,120

Other income

Bank interest income 2,825 1,446

Dividend income from listed investments 402 –

Others 1,459 1,236

4,686 2,682

5.
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6. Profit Before Tax

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

(crediting):

2007 2006

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

Depreciation 15 4,100 3,516
Impairment/(write-back of

impairment) on accounts receivable*  * 369 (5,459)
Minimum lease payments under

operating leases on leasehold land 
and buildings 5,234 5,229

Auditors’ remuneration
Current year 2,200 1,060
Under-provision in prior year 220 –

2,420 1,060

Employee benefits expense
(including directors’ remuneration
(note 8)): 8
Salaries 32,041 38,152
Pension scheme contributions 954 665
Less: Forfeited contributions refunded – (104)

Net pension schemes contributions**  ** 954 561

Provision for long services payments 38 1,278 348
Provision for annual leaves 374 365

Total employee benefits expense 34,647 39,426

Gross rental income (12) (272)
Less: Direct operating expenses – 44

Net rental income (12) (228)

Loss on disposal/write-off of items
of property, plant and equipment*  * 8 19

Impairment of items of property,
plant and equipment* 15 18 –

Exchange gains, net (3,762) (1,853)
Impairment of an interest in

a jointly-controlled entity*  * 20 2,419 –
Impairment/(reversal of impairment)

of an interest in an associate* * (715) 1,678

6.

* Included in “Other operating income/(expenses), net” on the

face of the consolidated income statement.

** At 30 April 2007, the Group had no forfeited contributions

available to reduce its contributions to the pension schemes

in future years (2006: Nil).

*

**
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7. Finance Costs

Group

2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000

Interest on bank loans, overdrafts and

other loans wholly repayable:

Within five years 1,665 489

Over five years 651 647

Interest on finance leases 63 29

Attributable to continuing operations

reported in the consolidated income

statement 2,379 1,165

7.
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8. Directors’ Remuneration

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to

the Listing Rules and Section 161 of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

Group

2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000

Fees 1,750 1,640

Other emoluments:

Salaries, allowances and benefits

in kind 8,222 4,174

Bonuses – 12,845

Pension scheme contributions 29 32

8,251 17,051

10,001 18,691

(a) Independent Non-executive Directors

The fees paid to Independent Non-executive Directors

during the year were as follows:

2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000

Mr. Chan Ka Ling, Edmond 120 80

Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin 120 80

Mr. Wong Yu Choi 80 50

320 210

There were no other emoluments payable to the

Independent Non-executive Directors during the year

(2006: Nil).

8.

161

(a)
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8. Directors’ Remuneration (continued)

(b) Executive directors

Salaries,

allowances Pension

and benefits scheme Total

Fees in kind Bonuses contributions remuneration

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

2007

Mr. Haywood Cheung 1,430 3,958 – – 5,388

Mr. So Pak Kwai – 260 – – 260

Dr. Chang Si-Chung – – – – –

Mr. Chan Hok Ching – 1,263 – 12 1,275

Mr. Cheung Tak Kwai, Stanley – 2,741 – 17 2,758

1,430 8,222 – 29 9,681

2006

Mr. Haywood Cheung 1,430 2,460 5,000 – 8,890

Mr. Felipe Tan – 614 5,000 19 5,633

Mr. So Pak Kwai – 466 700 7 1,173

Dr. Chang Si-Chung – – – – –

Mr. Chan Hok Ching – 239 1,145 3 1,387

Mr. Cheung Tak Kwai, Stanley – 395 1,000 3 1,398

1,430 4,174 12,845 32 18,481

There was no arrangement under which a director

waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during

the year. For the year ended 30 April 2006. Mr. So

Pak Kwai had waived his emolument amounted

HK$750,000.

8.

(b)

750,000
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9. Five Highest Paid Employees

The five highest paid employees during the year included

three (2006: five) directors, details of whose remuneration

are set out in note 8 above. Two of whom were appointed

as Directors of the Company during the year ended 30 April

2006. The remuneration paid to them as employees during

the year ended 30 April 2006 was HK$1,819,000 in

aggregate. Details of the remuneration of the remaining two

non-director, highest paid employees in 2007 are as follows:

2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000

Salaries, allowances and benefits

in kind 1,257 801

Bonuses – 1,000

Pension scheme contributions 23 18

1,280 1,819

Number of employees

2007 2006

Nil to HK$1,000,000 1,000,000 2 2

The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose

remuneration fell within the following band is as follows:

9.

8

1,819,000
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10. Tax

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as

the Group had no assessable profits arising in Hong Kong

for the year (2006: Nil). The statutory tax rate for Hong Kong

profits tax is 17.5% (2006: 17.5%). Taxes on profits

assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of

tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group

operates, based on existing legislation, interpretations and

practices in respect thereof.

2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000

Group:

Current 9 –

Deferred (note 37) 37 29 (24)

Total tax expense/(credit) for the year 38 (24)

10.

1 7 . 5 %

17.5%
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10. Tax (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expenses/(credit) applicable to

profit before tax using the statutory rates for the jurisdictions

in which the Company and its subsidiaries are domiciled to

the tax expense/(credit) at the effective tax rate is as follows:

Group

2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000

Profit before tax
(including profit from discontinued
operations) 69,290 156,120

Less: Share of profits and losses of
  jointly-controlled entities and
  associates 2,938 (7,381)

72,228 148,739

Tax charge at the statutory 17.5
rate of 17.5% 12,640 26,029

Income not subject to tax (13,145) (28,045)
Expenses not deductible for tax 1,328 2,892
Tax losses utilised from previous years (785) (900)

Tax expense/(credit) at the
Group’s effective rate 38 (24)

Tax expense/(credit) attributable to
continuing operations reported in
the consolidated income statement 38 (24)

During the year ended 30 April 2006, the share of tax

attributable to associates amounted to HK$1,886,000. The

amount was included in “Profit for the year from discontinued

operations” on the face of the consolidated income

statement. There was no tax attributable to associates and

jointly-controlled entities shared by the Group for the year

ended 30 April 2007.

10.

1,886,000
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11. Profit Attributable to Equity Holders
of the Company

The consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of the

Company for the year ended 30 April 2007 included a loss

of HK$8,973,000 (2006: a profit of HK$29,380,000) which

has been dealt with in the financial statements of the

Company (note 41(b)).

12. Discontinued Operations

(i) The group had processed the liquidation of a jointly-

controlled entity, Guangxi Dexin Aluminium Industry

Company Limited (“Dexin”) during the year ended 30

April 2006. The liquidation of Dexin was completed

on 29 March 2007. Upon completion of the liquidation,

the Group discontinued the operation of trading and

manufacturing of aluminium products.

The results of the Group’s trading and manufacturing

of aluminium products operation were as follows:

2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000

Share of profits/(losses) of

a jointly-controlled entity (1,128) 644

Gain on disposal of

a jointly-controlled entity 6,331 –

5,203 644

11.

8,973,000

29,380,000 41(b)

12.

(i)
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12. Discontinued Operations (continued)

(i)  (continued)

The major classes of assets relating to the trading and

manufacturing of aluminium products operation

classified as held for sale as at 30 April are as follows:

2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000

Share of net assets – 15,931

Due to a jointly-controlled entity – (3,369)

– 12,562

Provision for impairment – (11,500)

Interest in a jointly-controlled entity – 1,062

2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000

Operating activities – 728

Investing activities 5,311 –

Financing activities – –

Net cash inflow 5,311 728

Earnings per share:

Basic, from the discontinued

operation HK0.87 cents HK0.11 cents 

The net cash flows on the trading and manufacturing

of aluminium products operation are as follows:

12.

(i)
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12. Discontinued Operations (continued)

(i)  (continued)

The calculations of basic earnings per share from the

discontinued trading and manufacturing of aluminium

products operation are based on:

2007 2006

Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders

of the Company from the discontinued

trading and manufacturing of aluminium

products operation HK$5,203,000 HK$644,000

Number of ordinary shares in issue during

the year used in the basic earnings per

share calculation 607,566,000 607,566,000

(ii) The Group disposed of its entire interest in an

associate, Alexis Resources Limited (“Alexis”) on 30

September 2005. Upon disposal ,  the Group

discontinued its operation in the mining business.

The results of the mining operation of the Group were

as follows:

2006

HK$’000

Share of profits and losses of an associate 10,361

Gain on disposal of Alexis Alexis 26,328

Net cash inflow 36,689

12.

(i)

(ii)

A l ex i s

Resources Limited Alexis
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12. Discontinued Operations (continued)

(ii)  (continued)

No asset relating to the mining operation was classified

as held for sale as at 30 April 2007 and 30 April 2006.

The net cash flows on the mining operation during the

year are as follows:

2006

HK$’000

Operating activities and net cash inflow 1,483

Earnings per share:

Basic, from the discontinued operation 6.04 cents 

2006

Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders

of the Company from the discontinued

mining operation HK$36,689,000

Number of ordinary shares in issue during

the year used in the basic earnings per

share calculation 607,566,000

The calculations of basic earnings per share from the

discontinued mining operation are based on:

12.

(ii)
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13. Dividends

2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000

Interim – Nil (2006: HK$0.005) per share

0.005 – 3,038

Proposed final – HK$0.006 0.006

(2006: HK$0.006) per share 0.006 4,977 3,645

4,977 6,683

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the

approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming

annual general meeting.

14. Earnings per Share Attributable to
Ordinary Equity Holders of the
Company

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the

profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of

the Company of HK$69,203,000 (2006: HK$156,193,000)

and 607,566,000 (2006: 607,566,000) ordinary shares in

issue during the year.

The calculation of basic earnings per share from the

continuing operations is based on the profit for the year

from continuing operations of HK$64,049,000 (2006:

HK$118,811,000) and 607,566,000 (2006: 607,566,000)

ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Diluted earnings per share amount for the year ended 30

April 2007 and 2006 have not been disclosed as no diluting

events existed during these two years.

13.

14.

69,203,000

156,193,000

607,566,000

607,566,000

64,049,000

118,811,000

607,566,000

607,566,000
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15. Property, Plant and Equipment

Group

Leasehold

land and Furniture,

buildings equipment

under medium Leasehold and motor

term leases# improvements vehicles Total

#

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

30 April 2007

Cost:

At beginning of year 40,250 3,713 10,232 54,195

Additions – 2,701 2,025 4,726

Acquisition of subsidiaries – 226 469 695

Disposals/write-off – – (296) (296)

At 30 April 2007 40,250 6,640 12,430 59,320

Accumulated depreciation and

impairment:

At beginning of year 11,926 1,951 7,014 20,891

Provided during the year 1,610 1,058 1,432 4,100

Impairment during the year – 18 – 18

Disposals/write-off – – (288) (288)

At 30 April 2007 13,536 3,027 8,158 24,721

Net book value at 30 April 2007

26,714 3,613 4,272 34,599

15.
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15. Property, Plant and Equipment
(continued)

Group

Leasehold

land and Furniture,

buildings equipment

under medium Leasehold and motor

term leases# improvements vehicles Total

#

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

30 April 2006

Cost:

At beginning of year 36,885 2,709 9,100 48,694

Additions – 1,004 1,416 2,420

Transfer from investment

property 3,365 – – 3,365

Disposals/write-off – – (284) (284)

At 30 April 2006 40,250 3,713 10,232 54,195

Accumulated depreciation and

impairment:

At beginning of year 10,417 1,327 5,776 17,520

Provided during the year 1,509 624 1,383 3,516

Disposals/write-off – – (145) (145)

At 30 April 2006 11,926 1,951 7,014 20,891

Net book value at 30 April 2006

28,324 1,762 3,218 33,304

15.
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15. Property, Plant and Equipment
(continued)

Company

Furniture,
equipment

Leasehold and motor
improvements vehicles Total

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

30 April 2007

Cost at beginning of year and
at 30 April 2007 134 47 181

Accumulated depreciation and
impairment

At beginning of year 56 15 71
Provided during the year 45 11 56

At 30 April 2007 101 26 127

Net book value at 30 April 2007
33 21 54

30 April 2006

Cost at beginning of year and
at 30 April 2006 134 47 181

Accumulated depreciation:
At beginning of year 11 3 14
Provided during the year 45 12 57

At 30 April 2006 56 15 71

Net book value at 30 April 2006
78 32 110

# As the prepaid land lease payments cannot be allocated

reliably between the land and building elements, the entire

lease payments are included in the cost of land and building

as finance leases in property, plant and equipment in

accordance with HKAS 17 “Leases”.

15.

#

17
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15. Property, Plant and Equipment
(continued)

As at 30 April 2007, all leasehold land and buildings of the

Group in Hong Kong were pledged to secure banking

facilities granted to the Group (note 34).

The net book value of furniture, equipment and motor

vehicles of the Group included an amount of HK$1,383,000

(2006: HK$383,000) in respect of assets held under finance

leases.

16. Goodwill

Group

HK$’000

At 1 May 2006 –
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 42) 42 1,498

At 30 April 2007 1,498

Goodwill acquired through business combinations has been

allocated to the forex segment for impairment testing.

The recoverable amount of the forex segment has been

determined based on a value in use calculation using cash

flow projections based on financial budgets covering a five-

year period approved by senior management. The discount

rate applied to the cash flow projection is 10% and cash

flows beyond the five-year period are ignored.

Key assumptions were used in the value in use calculation

of the forex segment for 30 April 2007. The following

describes each key assumption on which management has

based its cash flow projections to undertake impairment

testing of goodwill:

Growth rate – No growth rate has been taken into account

in the cash flow projections as the Group considers that

the growth rate cannot be reliably measured.

Discount rates – The discount rates used are before tax

and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant units.

15.

34

1,383,000 383,000

16.

10%
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17. Other Long Term Assets

2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000

Membership of the Chinese Gold and

Silver Exchange Society 2,000 2,000

Deposits with the SEHK:

Compensation Fund 243 243

Fidelity Fund 200 200

Admission fee paid to the Hong Kong

Securities Clearing Company Limited 200 200

Contribution to the Guarantee Fund of

the Central Clearing and Settlement

System 200 200

Deposit with the Reserve Fund of

Hong Kong Futures Exchange

Clearing Corporation Limited 1,668 1,770

Deposit for acquisition of a mining *

company* (note 42) 42 4,036 –

Loan to a mining company* (note 42) * 42 4,036 –

Deposit for acquiring an exploration

right in Mainland China 706 –

13,289 4,613

* As at the balance sheet date, the Group recorded a deposit

of approximately HK$4,036,000 which related to the

acquisition of 15% equity interest in 

 (“ ”), a Mainland China incorporated

company which is principally engaged in the operation of a

gold mine in  X in j iang,  and a loan to  of

approximately HK$4,036,000. The acquisit ion was

completed subsequent to year ended.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s other long term assets

approximate to their fair values.

17.

*

15% 4,036,000

4,036,000
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18. Intangible Assets

Group

2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000

Cost at 1 May and 30 April, net of

accumulated amortisation and

impairment 2,163 2,163

HK$’000

Cost:

At beginning of year 19,984

Accumulated amortisation

and impairment:

At beginning of year 17,821

Provided during the year –

17,821

Net book value:

At 30 April 2007 2,163

At 30 April 2006 2,163

18.
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18. Intangible Assets (continued)

Impairment testing of intangible assets

Intangible assets comprised the eligibility rights to trade on

or through the SEHK and Hong Kong Futures Exchange

Limited, which have no expiry dates. The recoverable

amount of the intangible assets has been determined based

on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections

based on the past financial results and financial budgets of

the Group. The cash flow projections are discounted by the

prevailing market rate of return adjusted with the specific

risks relating to the Group. No growth rate has been taken

into account in the cash flow projections as the Group

considers that the growth rate cannot be reliably measured.

Key assumptions used in the cash flow projections included

financial budgets and discount rates. Financial budgets are

determined with reference to the financial results of the

previous years while the discount rates used reflect specific

risks relating to the Group.

18.



105

Notes to Financial Statements

30 April 2007

 / 

19. Interests in Subsidiaries

Company

2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000

Unlisted shares, at cost 41,510 41,510
Due from subsidiaries 1,163,448 1,174,830
Due to subsidiaries (48,053) (40,310)

1,156,905 1,176,030

Provision for impairment (1,105,316) (1,105,316)

51,589 70,714

The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free
and have no fixed terms of repayment. The carrying amounts
of the of balances with subsidiaries approximate to their fair
values.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note
49 to the financial statements.

On 10 May 2006, the Group established Precious Source
International Limited (“Precious Source”), a jointly-controlled
entity with a company (the “JV Partner”), which a director
of the JV Partner is also a director of the Company, for the
purpose of investing in a 15% equity interest in 
which operates a gold mine in Xinjiang. The Group’s initial
investment in Precious Source was approximately
HK$4,036,000. On 24 April 2007, the Group acquired the
remaining 50% equity interest in Precious Source from the
JV Partner for approximately HK$4,036,000 in the form of
a promissory note issued to the JV Partner (note 33). Upon
completion of the acquisition, Precious Source became a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group.

On 16 August 2006, a subsidiary that the Group owns 60%
equity interest, established a 99% owned subsidiary, 

 (“Nan Ling”), for approximately
HK$948,000. Nan Ling will mainly be engaged in the mining
and processing of metals. The Group’s share of capital
contribution had been paid up to HK$998,000 as at the
balance sheet date.

19.

49

15%

4,036,000
4,036,000

50%
33

60%
948,000 99%

998,000



Notes to Financial Statements

106

30 April 2007

S
im

se
n

 In
te

rn
a

tio
n

a
l C

o
rp

o
ra

tio
n

 L
im

ite
d

A
nnual R

ep
ort 2006/2007

20. Interests in Jointly-Controlled
Entities

Group

2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000

Share of net assets – 11,864

Due from a jointly-controlled entity 169 299

Loans to a jointly-controlled entity 2,250 –

2,419 12,163

Provision for impairment (2,419) –

– 12,163

The amount due from a jointly-controlled entity is unsecured,

interest-free and has no fixed terms of repayment.

During the year ended 30 April 2007, the Group advanced

loans of HK$2,250,000 to a jointly-controlled entity indirectly

held by the Company. The loan are unsecured, bear interest

at the Hong Kong dollar prime rate plus 2% per annum and

are repayable within one year. In the opinion of the Directors,

balances with the jointly-controlled entity have been fully

impaired because the operation of the jointly-controlled

entity is declining and the likelihood of recoverability is low.

20.

2,250,000

2
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20. Interests in Jointly-Controlled
Entities (continued)

Particulars of the principal jointly-controlled entity at 30 April

2007 are follows:

Effective The The

Place of equity Group’s Group’s

incorporation/ interest percentage percentage

Business registration attributable of voting of profit Principal

Name structure and operations to the Group power sharing activitiy

sunArt Entertainment Limited * Corporate Hong Kong 50% 50% 50% Entertainment

(“sunArt”)

During the year, the Group discontinued the recognition of

its share of losses of it had exceeded the Group’s interest

therein. The Group’s unrecognised share of losses of this

jointly-controlled entity for the year ended 30 April 2007

was HK$1,390,000.

On 14 October 2006, the Group acquired an additional 50%

equity interest in Lee Fung Hong (Cheung’s) Forex Dealers

Limited (“LFH Forex”). Subsequent to the completion of the

acquisition, LFH Forex ceased to be a jointly-controlled entity

and become a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group.

Further details of the acquisition are included in note 42 to

the financial statements.

20.

1,390,000

50%

42
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20. Interests in Jointly-Controlled
Entities (continued)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial

information of the Group’s jointly-controlled entities:

2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000

Share of the jointly-controlled entities’

assets and liabilities:

Current assets 1,374 70,958

Non-current assets 717 628

Current liabilities (4,870) (41,557)

Net assets/(liabilities) (2,779) 30,029

Share of the jointly-controlled entities’

results:

Turnover (2,937) 8,624

Other revenue 7,210 468

Total revenue 4,273 9,092

Total expenses (10,680) (14,291)

Tax – –

Loss after tax (6,407) (5,199)

20.
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21. Interests in Associates

Group

2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000

Share of net assets – 715

Loan to an associate 900 900

Due from associates 36 63

Due to associates – –

936 1,678

Provision for impairment (936) (1,678)

– –

The loan to an associate is unsecured, interest-bearing with

interest charged at the Hong Kong dollar prime rate plus

2% per annum. The loan matured on 30 March 2007 and

had been refinanced by a new loan bearing interest at 2%

over the Hong Kong dollar prime rate per annum and due

on 30 September 2007.

Other than the aforementioned, the balances with associates

are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of

repayment.

21.

2

2



Notes to Financial Statements

110

30 April 2007

S
im

se
n

 In
te

rn
a

tio
n

a
l C

o
rp

o
ra

tio
n

 L
im

ite
d

A
nnual R

ep
ort 2006/2007

21. Interests in Associates (continued)

Particulars of the associates are as follows:

Nominal Effective

Place of value equity interest

Business incorporation of issued attributable Principal

Name structure and operations shares to the Group activities

2007 2006

Asia Vigour Productions Corporate Hong Kong HK$2 48% 40% Producing,

Limited # 2 organising and

promoting live

concerts

Asia Vigour (Holdings) Corporate British Virgin US$100 48% 40% Investment

Limited # Islands 100 holding

# Statutory audits of these companies are not performed by

Ernst & Young Hong Kong or other Ernst & Young

International member firms.

During the year, the Group has discontinued the recognition

of its share of losses of Asia Vigour (Holding) Limited and

its subsidiary, Asia Vigour Productions Limited, because the

share of losses of the associates had exceeded the Group’s

interests therein. The Group’s unrecognised share of losses

of these associates for the year ended 30 April 2007 was

HK$1,157,000.

21.

#

Asia

Vigour (Holding) Limited

1,157,000
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21. Interests in Associates (continued)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial

information of the Group’s associates extracted from their

management accounts:

2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000

Assets 3,119 6,438
Liabilities (5,926) (4,652)
Revenue 17,469 29,001
Losses (2,793) (2,560)

22. Available-For-Sale Investments

Group

2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000

Unlisted equity investments
in Hong Kong, at cost 136 485

Less: Provision for impairment – (207)

136 278

Unlisted equity investments
outside Hong Kong, at cost 13,625 13,625

Less: Provision for impairment (13,625) (13,625)

– –

136 278

The above equity investments were designated as available-

for-sale equity investments. They have no fixed maturity date

or coupon rate.

21.

22.
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23. Due from a Related Party

Group

Maximum

amount

Balance at Balance at outstanding

Related party 1 May 2006 30 April 2007 during the year

Cheung Leung Sing – 178 236

Mr. Cheung Leung Sing is a close family member of Mr.

Haywood Cheung,  a director of the Company. The amount

due from the related party is unsecured, interest-fee and

has no fixed terms of repayment. The amount was fully

settled after the balance sheet date.

24. Inventories

Group

2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000

Finished goods 130 130

23.

24.
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25. Accounts Receivable

The Group’s accounts receivable arose from securities, forex

and bullion dealing services, margin financing and money

lending operations.

2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000

Accounts receivable from securities,

forex and bullion dealing services 41,703 23,864

Accounts receivable from margin

financing and money lending

operations 2,089 3,686

43,792 27,550

Portion classified as non-current assets – (117)

Portion classified as current assets 43,792 27,433

Securities, forex and bullion dealing services

The Group allows a credit period of up to the settlement

dates of the respective securities, forex and bull ion

transactions or a credit period mutually agreed with the

contracting parties. Each customer has a maximum credit

limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its

outstanding receivables to minimise credit risk. Overdue

balances are reviewed regularly by senior management. In

view of the aforementioned and that the Group’s accounts

receivable relate to a large number of diversified customers,

there is no significant concentration of credit risk. Overdue

accounts receivable bear interest with reference to the Hong

Kong dollars prime rate.

25.
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25. Accounts Receivable (continued)

Securities, forex and bullion dealing services

(continued)

An aged analysis of the Group’s accounts receivable for

securities, forex and bullion dealing services at the balance

sheet date, based on the settlement due date and net of

provisions for impairment, is as follows:

Group

2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000

Current to 90 days 90 41,703 23,864

Margin financing and money lending operations

The Group allows a credit period mutually agreed with the

contracting parties. Each customer has a maximum credit

limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its

outstanding loans receivable to minimise credit risk. Loans

for margin financing are secured by the pledge of customers’

securities as collateral. Overdue balances are reviewed

regular ly  by sen ior  management.  In  v iew of  the

aforementioned and as the fact that the Group’s accounts

receivable relate to diversified customers, there is no

significant concentration of credit risk. Accounts receivable

are interest-bearing at a rate mutually agreed with the

contracting parties.

25.
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25. Accounts Receivable (continued)

Margin financing and money lending operations

(continued)

An aged analysis of the Group’s accounts receivable for

margin financing and money leading operations at the

balance sheet dates, based on the settlement due date and

net of provisions for impairment, is as follows:

Group

2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000

Repayable:

On demand 2,079 1,575

Within 3 months 10 311

In 3 months to 1 year – 1,683

In 1 year to 5 years – 117

2,089 3,686

Portion classified as current assets (2,089) (3,569)

Portion classified as non-current assets – 117

The carrying amounts of the Group’s accounts receivable

approximate to their fair values.

26. Loans Receivable

Included in loans receivable of the Group are promissory

notes of HK$17,851,000 which are non-interest-bearing,

secured by a charge over 1,695 ordinary shares in Alexis

and mature on 29 September 2006. The amount was fully

settled during the year.

25.

26.

17,851,000

1,695 Alexis
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27. Prepayments, Deposits and Other
Receivables

Group Company

2007 2006 2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Prepayments 900 337 88 –

Deposits 2,530 1,735 19 –

Other receivables 4,433 43,847 – 18

7,863 45,919 107 18

The Group’s other receivables included HK$3,543,000

(2006: HK$43,602,000) which represented proceeds from

the disposal of certain equity investments at fair value

through profit and loss. The amount was fully settled after

the balance sheet date.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s prepayments, deposits

and other receivables approximate to their fair values.

28. Equity Investments at Fair Value
through Profit or Loss

2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000

Listed equity investments,

at market value:

Hong Kong 9,162 2,433

Elsewhere 175,398 117,304

184,560 119,737

27.

3,543,000

43,602,000

28.
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28. Equity Investments at Fair Value
through Profit or Loss (continued)

The above equity investments at 30 April 2006 and 2007

were classified as held for trading.

Included in the Group’s equity investments was an an

amount of HK$175,398,000 (2006: HK$117,304,000) which

represented approximately a 9% (2006: 13%) equity interest

in the common share of GobiMin, Inc., a company

incorporated in Canada and listed on the TSX Venture

Exchange.

As at 30 April 2007, certain of the Group’s listed equity

investments in Hong Kong of HK$5,203,000 (2006:

HK$2,433,000) were pledged to secure banking facilities

granted to the Group (note 34).

The market value of equity investments at fair value through

profit or loss at the date of approval of these financial

statements was approximately HK$150,668,000.

29. Bank Trust Account Balances

The Group maintains segregated trust accounts with

licensed banks to hold clients’ monies arising from its normal

course of business. The Group has classified the clients’

monies as bank trust account balances under the current

assets section of the balance sheets and recognised the

corresponding accounts payable to the respective clients

on the grounds that  i t  i s  l i ab le  for  any loss  or

misappropriation of the client’s monies. The Group is not

permitted to use the clients’ monies to settle its own

obligations.

The carrying amounts of the bank trust account balances

approximate to their fair values.

28.

175,398,000

117,304,000

GobiMin, Inc. 9%

13% GobiMin, Inc.

5,203,000

2,433,000

34

150,668,000

29.
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30. Cash and Cash Equivalents and
Pledged Deposits

Group Company

2007 2006 2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Cash and bank balances 67,889 40,789 120 1,394

Time deposits 3,594 3,000 – –

71,483 43,789 120 1,394

Less: Pledged deposits for

  bank overdrafts

  (note34) 34 (3,594) (3,000) – –

Cash and cash equivalents 67,889 40,789 120 1,394

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily

bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for

varying periods of between one day and three months

depending on the immediate cash requirements of the

Group, and earn interest at the respective short term time

deposit rates. The carrying amounts of the cash and cash

equivalents and the pledged deposits approximate to their

fair values.

30.
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31. Accounts Payable

The Group’s accounts payable arose from securities, bullion

and forex dealings.

An aged analysis of the Group’s accounts payable at the

balance sheet date, based on the settlement due date, is

as follows:

2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000

Current to 30 days 30 134,103 65,795

The accounts payable are unsecured, bears interest at bank

deposit saving rates (2006: bank deposit saving rates) and

repayable on the settlement day of the relevant trades or

upon demand from customers.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s accounts payable

approximate to their fair values.

31.
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32. Other Payables and Accruals

Group Company

2007 2006 2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Other payables 612 544 225 132

Accruals 7,772 17,496 604 694

8,384 18,040 829 826

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an

average term of three months. The Group’s and the

Company’s other payables and accruals approximate to their

fair values.

33. Promissory Note

The promissory note was issued in relation to the acquisition

of a 50% equity interest in Precious Source during the year

ended 30 April 2007 (note 19). The balance is unsecured,

interest-free and due on 6 September 2007.

The carrying amount of the Group’s promissory note

approximates to its fair value.

32.

33.

50%

19
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34. Interest-Bearing Bank and Other
Borrowings

Group Company

Effective 2007 2006 2007 2006
interest
rate (%) Maturity HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

2007 2006 2007 2006

Current
Bank loans – secured 5.35 5.60 2008 2007 1,708 1,726 – –

Other loans – unsecured – 2.00 – 2007 – 8,000 – 8,000

1,708 9,726 – 8,000

Non-current
Bank loans – secured 5.35 5.60 2009 – 2015 2008 – 2015 9,894 10,973 – –

11,602 20,699 – 8,000

Group Company

2007 2006 2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Analysed into:
Bank loans and overdrafts

repayable:
Within one year or

on demand 1,708 1,726 – –
In the second year 1,618 1,726 – –
In the third to fifth years,

inclusive 4,367 4,371 – –
Over five years 3,909 4,876 – –

11,602 12,699 – –

Other borrowings repayable:

Within one year – 8,000 – 8,000

11,602 20,699 – 8,000

34.
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34. Interest-Bearing Bank and Other
Borrowings (continued)

Notes:

(a) The Group has overdraft facilities of and secured bank loans

as at the balance sheet date which are secured by:

(i) the pledge of time deposits of the honorary chairman

o f  t he  Company  o f  HK$2 ,000 ,000  ( 2006 :

HK$2,000,000);

(ii) the pledge of t ime deposits of  the Group of

HK$3,594,000 (2006: HK$3,000,000) (note 30);

(iii) the Group's leasehold land and buildings, which have

an aggregate carrying value at the balance sheet date

o f  a p p ro x i m a t e l y  H K $ 2 6 , 7 1 4 , 0 0 0  ( 2 0 0 6 :

HK$28,324,000) (note 15);

(iv) the pledge of certain of the Group's investments in

l i s t ed  secu r i t i e s  o f  HK$5 ,203 ,000  ( 2006 :

HK$2,433,000) (note 28); and

(v) personal guarantees executed by the honorary

chairman, and certain directors of the Company and

certain executives of subsidiaries of the Group (note

48(b)).

In addition, the Company has provided corporate guarantees

on certain of the Group's bank loans and overdraft facilities

of up to HK$21,602,000 (2006: HK$33,367,000) of which

HK$11,602,000 (2006: HK$12,699,000) was utilised as at

the balance sheet date.

34.

(a)

(i)

2,000,000

2,000,000

(ii) 3,594,000

3,000,000

30

(iii)

26,714,000

28,324,000 15

(iv)

5,203,000

2,433,000

28

(v)

48(b)

21,602,000

33,367,000

11,602,000

12,699,000
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34. Interest-Bearing Bank and Other
Borrowings (continued)

Notes: (continued)

Other interest rate information:

Group

2007 2006

Fixed rate Floating rate Fixed rate Floating rate

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Bank loans – secured – 11,602 – 12,699

Other loans – unsecured – – 8,000 –

Company

2007 2006

Fixed rate Floating rate Fixed rate Floating rate

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Other loans – unsecured – – 8,000 –

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank and other borrowings

approximate to their fair values. The fair values of the bank and

other borrowings was estimated as the present value of future

cash flows, discounted at the prevailing interest rates at the

respective balance sheet dates.

34.
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35. Finance Leases Payable

The Group leases certain of its property, plant and

equipment for its business operations. These leases are

classified as finance leases and have a remaining lease term

of 52 months (2006: 53 months).

At 30 April 2007, the total future minimum lease payments

under finance leases and their present values were as

follows:

Present value of

Minimum minimum lease

lease payments payments

2007 2006 2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Amounts payable under finance

leases:

Within one year 388 228 378 221

In the second year 249 152 228 140

In the third to fifth years,

inclusive 513 31 436 22

1,150 411 1,042 383

Less: Future finance charges (108) (28)

Present value of lease obligations 1,042 383

Portion classified as current

liabilities (378) (221)

Non-current portion 664 162

35.

52

53
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36. Due to Minority Shareholders

The amounts due to minority shareholders are unsecured,

interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment.

The carrying amounts of the amounts due to with minority

shareholders approximate to their fair values.

37. Deferred Tax Liabilities

The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the year is

as follows:

Depreciation

allowance in

excess of related Revaluation

depreciation of properties Total

2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

At beginning of year 303 14 – 334 303 348

Charged/(credited) to

the income statement for

the year (note 10) 10 29 289 – (334) 29 (45)

At 30 April 332 303 – – 332 303

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of

HK$34,104,000 (2006: HK$38,590,000) that are available

indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the

companies in which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets

have not been recognised in respect of these losses as they

have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for

some time.

36.

37.

34,104,000

38,590,000
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37. Deferred Tax Liabilities (continued)

At 30 April 2007, there was no significant unrecognised

deferred tax liability (2006: Nil) for taxes that would be

payable on the unremitted earnings of certain of the Group’s

subsidiaries, associates or jointly-controlled entities as the

Group has no liability to additional tax should such amounts

be remitted.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the

payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

38. Provision for Long Service Payments

Group Company

2007 2006 2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

At 1 May 3,159 3,669 – –

Additional provision 1,278 348 249 –

Amounts utilised during the year (462) (858) – –

At 30 April 3,975 3,159 249 –

Portion classified as

current liabilities – – – –

Non-current portion 3,975 3,159 249 –

The Group provides for the probable future long service

payments expected to be made to employees under the

Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, as further explained

under the heading “Employee benefits” in note 2.4 to the

financial statements. The provision is based on the best

estimate of the probable future payments which have been

earned by the employees from their services to the Group

to the balance sheet date.

37.

38.

2.4
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39. Share Capital

2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000

Authorised:

50,000,000,000 (2006: 50,000,000,000) 50,000,000,000

ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each 50,000,000,000

0.01 500,000 500,000

Issued and fully paid:

607,566,000 (2006: 607,566,000) 607,566,000

ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each 607,566,000

0.01 6,076 6,076

40. Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the

“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and

rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the

success of the Group’s operations.

Under the Scheme, the directors of the Company may, on

or before 3 March 2012, grant options to el igible

participants, including the Company’s directors, other

employees of the Group, suppliers of goods or services to

the Group, customers of the Group, and any minority

shareholders of the Company’s subsidiaries. The Scheme

became effective on 4 March 2002 and, unless otherwise

cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from

that date.

39.

40.
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40. Share Option Scheme (continued)

The maximum number of unexercised share options

currently permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an

amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares

of the Company in issue at any time. No share options have

been granted under the Scheme since its adoption. The

maximum number of shares issuable under share options

to each eligible participant in the Scheme within any 12-

month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company

in issue at the exercise date. Any further grant of share

options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’

approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or

substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their

associates, are subject to approval in advance by the

independent non-executive directors of the Company. In

addition, any share options granted to a substantial

shareholder or an independent non-executive director of

the Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of

0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at anytime or

with an aggregate value (based on the price of the

Company’s shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5

mill ion, within any 12-month period, are subject to

shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within

21 days from the date of the offer, upon payment of a

nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The

exercise period of the share options granted is determinable

by the directors of the Company, and commences after a

certain vesting period and ends on a date which is not later

than 10 years from the date of offer of the share options.

40.

10%

1%

0.1% 5,000,000

21

1
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40. Share Option Scheme (continued)

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by

the directors of the Company, but may not be less than the

higher of (i) the SEHK closing price of the Company’s shares

on the date of offer of the share options; and (ii) the average

SEHK closing price of the Company’s shares for the five

trading days immediately preceding the date of the offer.

41. Reserves

(a) Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the

movements therein for the current and prior years are

presented in the consolidated statement of changes

in equity on pages 37 and 38 of the f inancial

statements.

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the

difference between of the nominal value of the shares

of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Group

reorganisation in 1994 prior to the listing of the

Company’s shares (the “Reorganisation”), over the

nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in

exchange therefor.

Pursuant to the relevant laws in Mainland China, a

portion of profits of the Group’s associates and jointly-

controlled entities in Mainland China, subject to the

discretion of its board of directors, were transferred

to the general reserve. Subject to certain restrictions

set out in the relevant regulations in Mainland China

and the articles of associations of the relevant

companies, the general reserve may be used to set

off losses or for capitalisation as paid-up capital.

40.

(i)

(ii)

41.

(a)

37 38
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41. Reserves (continued)

(b) Company

Retained

earnings/

Share (Accumulated

premium Contributed losses)

account surplus Total

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

At 1 May 2005 269,608 25,760 (264,376) 30,992

Transfer to contributed surplus (269,608) 269,608 – –

Transfer to retained earnings – (264,376) 264,376 –

Profit for the year – – 29,380 29,380

Interim 2006 dividend (note 13) 13 – – (3,038) (3,038)

Proposed final 2006

dividend (note 13) 13 – – (3,645) (3,645)

At 30 April and 1 May 2006

– 30,992 22,697 53,689

Loss for the year – – (8,973) (8,973)

Proposed final 2007

dividend (note 13) 13 – – (4,977) (4,977)

At 30 April 2007 – 30,992 8,747 39,739

The contributed surplus of the Company represents

the excess of the net asset value of the subsidiaries

acquired pursuant to the Reorganisation, over the

nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in

exchange therefor. Under the Companies Act 1981 of

Bermuda (as amended), the Company’s contributed

surplus is currently not available for distribution.

41.

(b)
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42. Business Combination

On 14 October 2006, the Group acquired a 50% equity

interest in LFH Forex, previously a jointly-controlled entities

of the Group. LFH Forex is principally engaged in broking

and dealing of the forex contracts. Further details of the

acquisition are set out in a circular and an announcement

of the Company dated 6 October 2006 and 17 October

2006, respectively. The purchase consideration for the

acquisition of HK$11,547,000 was in the form of cash and

was paid at the acquisition. Upon completion of the

acquisition, LFH Forex became a wholly-owned subsidiary

of the Group.

On 14 December 2006, the Group acquired a 100% equity

interest in CHINA GOLD (Precious Metal) Strategic

Investment Limited (“China Gold”). China Gold was mainly

engaged in gold bullion trading but had ceased operation

subsequent to becoming a subsidiary of the Group during

the year. The purchase consideration of HK$416,000 was

settled in cash and represented a consideration of HK$1,000

for the entire outstanding share capital of China Gold and a

consideration of HK$415,000 for acquiring a shareholder’s

loan with a face value of HK$2,125,000 due by China Gold

to one of the shareholders (the “Former Shareholder”). A

director of the Company had made advances to China Gold

aggregating to HK$1,202,000 on behalf of the Former

Shareholder during the year, which formed part of the

shareholder’s loan amount acquired by the Group.

42.

50%

11,547,000

100%

416,000

1,000

415,000

2,125,000

1,202,000
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42. Business Combination (continued)

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of

Precious Source, LFH Forex and China Gold as at the day

immediately before the acquisition were as follows:

Fair value recognised on acquisition Carrying amount

Precious Precious
Source China Gold LFH Forex Source China Gold LFH Forex

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Property, plant and
equipment (note 15) 15 – 437 258 – 437 258

Other long term assets (note 17) 17 8,072 – – 8,072 – –
Equity investments at fair value

through profit or loss – – 1,089 – – 1,089
Bank trust account balances – – 44,872 – – 44,872
Cash and bank balances – 102 11,679 – 102 11,679
Accounts receivable – – 7,700 – – 7,700
Prepayments, deposit  and

other receivables – 572 288 – 572 288
Accounts payable – (238) (45,215) – (238) (45,215)
Other payables and accruals – (372) (573) – (372) (573)
Finance lease payable – (85) – – (85) –
Amounts due to a former

shareholder of China Gold – (2,125) – – (1,709) –

8,072 (1,709) 20,098 8,072 (2,125) 20,098

Goodwill on acquisition (note 16) 16 – – 1,498

8,072 (1,709) 21,596

Satisfied by:
Cash – 416 11,547
Promissory note 4,036 – –
Reclassification from interest in

jointly-controlled entities
to interest in subsidiaries 4,036 – 10,049

Amount assigned to a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group – (2,215) –

8,072 (1,709) 21,596

42.
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42. Business Combination (continued)

An analysis of the net inflow/(outflow) of cash and cash

equivalents in respect of the acquisition of subsidiaries is

as follows:

Precious

Source China Gold LFH Forex

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Cash consideration – (416) (11,547)

Cash and bank balances

acquired – 102 11,679

Net inflow/(outflow) of cash

and cash equivalents

in respect of the acquisition

of subsidiaries – (314) 132

Since its acquisition, no turnover and profit were contributed

to the Group by Precious Source for the year ended 30

April 2007. Had the combination taken place at the

beginning of the year, the revenue from continuing

operations of the Group and the profit of the Group for the

y e a r  w o u l d  h a v e  b e e n  H K $ 1 2 4 , 4 4 5 , 0 0 0  a n d

HK$64,317,000 respectively.

42.

124,445,000 64,317,000
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42. Business Combination (continued)

Since its acquisition, China Gold contributed HK$1,355,000

to the Group’s turnover and a loss of HK$274,000 to the

consolidated profit for the year ended 30 April 2007. Had

the combination taken place at the beginning of the year,

the revenue from continuing operations of the Group and

the profit of the Group for the year would have been

HK$124,588,000 and HK$62,196,000 respectively.

Since its acquisition, LFH Forex contributed HK$10,285,000

to the Group’s turnover and HK$3,409,000 to the

consolidated profit for the year ended 30 April 2007. Had

the combination taken place at the beginning of the year,

the revenue from continuing operations of the Group and

the profit of the Group for the year would have been

HK$119,069,000 and HK$55,795,000 respectively.

42.

1,355,000

274,000

124,588,000 62,196,000

10,285,000

3,409,000

1 1 9 , 0 6 9 , 0 0 0

55,795,000
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43. Notes to the Consolidated Cash Flow
Statement

(a) Disposal of subsidiaries

2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000

Net assets disposed of:
Available-for-sale investments 278 –
Interests in associates – 12
Prepayments, deposits and

other receivables – 257
Other payables and accrual – (1,115)
Interest-bearing bank and other

borrowings – (4,457)
Deferred tax liabilities – (21)
Tax payables (8,753) –
Minority interests – 275

(8,475) (5,049)

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 8,775 5,336

300 287

Satisfied by:
Cash 300 287

2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000

Net inflow of cash and cash
equivalent in respect of the
disposal of a subsidiary 300 287

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents

in respect of the disposal of a subsidiary is as follows:

The results of the subsidiaries disposed of during the

two years ended 30 April 2007 and 2006 had no

significant impact on the Group’s consolidated

turnover and profit after tax for these years.

43.

(a)
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43. Notes to the Consolidated Cash Flow
Statement (continued)

(b) Major non-cash transactions

(i) During the year ended 30 April 2007, the Group

entered into finance lease arrangements in

respect of property, plant and equipment with a

total capital value at the inception of the leases

of HK$1,051,000 (2006: HK$57,000).

(ii) During the year ended 30 April 2007, the Group

issued a promissory note of HK$4,036,000, in

relation to the acquisition of a 50% equity interest

in Precious Source as further detailed in note 19

to the financial statements.

(iii) During the year ended 30 April 2007, the Group

obtained an other receivable of approximately

HK$505,000, in relation to the liquidation of Dexin

as further detailed in note 12 to the financial

statements.

(iv) During the year ended 30 April 2007, a receivable

from a director of the Company of HK$2,000,000

was offset against a management bonus payable

by a fellow subsidiary to certain directors of the

Company.

44. Pledge of Assets

Details of the Group’s bank loans and overdrafts, which are

secured by the assets of the Group, are included in note 34

to the financial statements.

43.

(b)

(i)

1,051,000

57,000

(ii)

50%

4,036,000

19

(iii)

505,000

12

(iv)

2,000,000

44.

34
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45. Contingent Liabilities

At the balance sheet date, the Company had contingent

liabilities not provided for in the financial statements as

follows:

2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000

Guarantees for borrowing and guarantee

facilities granted to subsidiaries 33,364 33,367

As at 30 April 2007, the banking facilities granted to the

subsidiaries subject to guarantees given to the banks by

the Company were utilised to the extent of approximately

HK$11,602,000 (2006: HK$12,699,000).

46. Operating Lease Arrangements

The Group leases certain of its office properties under

operating lease arrangements. Leases for properties are

negotiated for terms ranging from one to five years.

At the balance sheet dates, the Group had total future

minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating

leases falling due as follows:

2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000

Within one year 6,410 6,001

In the second to fifth years, inclusive 2,074 4,740

8,484 10,741

45.

11,602,000

12,699,000

46.
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47. Commitments

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in

note 46 above, the Group had the following commitments

as at the balance sheet date:

(a) HK$67,709,000 (2006:HK$19,499,000)  and

HK$334,642,000 (2006: Nil) in respect of the net open

position of bullion contracts and forex contracts

undertaken in the ordinary course of business existing

at the balance sheet date.

(b) Approximately HK$706,000 for the acquisition of a

mining exploration right, which is contracted but not

provided for.

Save as disclosed above, the Group and the Company did

not have any other significant commitments as at the

balance sheet date.

47.

46

(a)

67,709,000

1 9 , 4 9 9 , 0 0 0

334,642,000

(b) 706,000



139

Notes to Financial Statements

30 April 2007

 / 

48. Related Party Transactions

(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in

the financial statements, the Group had the following

material transactions with related parties during the

year:

2007 2006

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

Management fee received from
a jointly-controlled entity (i) – 313

Rental income received from
related companies (ii) 12 –

Rental expense paid to related
companies (iii) 1,482 158

Employment compensation
paid to the close family
members of the directors
of the Company 1,151 925

Dividend income received from
an associate 720 1,484

Notes:

(i) Management fees were based on the actual costs

incurred for the services provided.

(ii) Rental income received from a related company with

a common director, which was based on the rate

mutually agreed by both parties.

(iii) The Company paid rental expenses to related

companies for three properties. These related

companies are owned or partially owned by Mr. and

Mrs. Haywood Cheung and his close family member.

The rental charges were based on the agreements

entered into between the Company and the

corresponding related companies.

48.

(a)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)
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48. Related Party Transactions (continued)

(b) Other transactions with related parties:

(i) During the year, there were occasions where the

Group received payments from a director of the

Company, and in turn made payments to certain

individuals and companies which the director was

related to and has interest in respectively. The

aggregate amount of such transactions was

HK$5,162,181 for the year ended 30 April 2007.

(ii) A motor vehicle acquired during the year at

a consideration of HK$980,000 was held in trust

by a close family member of a director of the

Company.

(iii) The banking facilities granted to a subsidiary of

the Group are secured by a bank deposit of

HK$2,000,000 (2006: HK$2,000,000) granted by

the Honorary Chairman of the Company and

personal guarantees executed by the Honorary

Chairman and a director of the Company and

certain executives of the subsidiary of the Group.

(iv) On 14 October 2006, the Group acquired a 50%

equity interest in LFH Forex, previously a jointly-

controlled entity of the Group. Further details of

the acquisition are set out in a circular and an

announcement of the Company dated 6 October

2006 and 17 October 2006 respectively. The

purchase consideration for the acquisition of

HK$11,547,000 was in the form of cash and was

fully paid upon completion.

(v) On 24 April 2007, the Group acquired the

remaining 50% equity interest in Precious Source

from the JV Partner. For further details, please

refer to note 19 to the financial statements.

48.

(b)

(i)

5,162,181

(ii) 980,000

(iii)

2,000,000

2,000,000

(iv)

50%

11,547,000

(v)

50%

19
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48. Related Party Transactions (continued)

(c) Outstanding balances with related parties:

(i) Detail of the Group’s loans to/from and balances

with its jointly-controlled entities as at the balance

sheet, and the Group’s loans to/from and

balances with its associates are included in notes

20 and 21 to the f inanc ia l  s tatements,

respectively.

(ii) Details of the Group’s balances with related

parties and amount due to minority shareholders

are included in notes 23 and 36 to the financial

statements, respectively.

(d) Compensation of key management personnel of the

Group:

The directors are the key management of the

Company. Further details of directors’ emoluments are

included in note 8 to the financial statements.

The related party transactions in respect of items (b)(i)

may also constitute connected transactions or

continuing connected transactions as defined in

Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

48.

(c)

(i)

20

21

(ii)

2 3

36

(d)

8

A

(b)(i) 
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49. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries

The table below lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,

in the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally

affected the results for the year or formed a substantial

portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of

other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors of

the Company, result in particulars of excessive length.

Nominal value

of issued

Place of ordinary share/

incorporation paid-up capital Percentage of

and operations equity attributable

Name to the Group Principal activities

2007 2006

Held directly

Firstmount International British Virgin US$1 100 100 Investment holding

Limited Islands/ 1

Hong Kong

Held indirectly

Cheer Gain International Hong Kong HK$100 60 – Investment holding

Limited 100

Clear Smart Investments British Virgin US$100 60 – Investment holding

Limited Islands/ 100

Hong Kong

49.
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Nominal value

of issued

Place of ordinary share/

incorporation paid-up capital Percentage of

and operations equity attributable

Name to the Group Principal activities

2007 2006

Held indirectly (continued)

Cheung’s Gold Traders Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 100 100 Metal broking

Limited 5,000,000 and trading

Cheung’s Securities Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 100 100 Securities and

Brokers Limited 10,000,000 futures contracts

broking and trading

CHINA GOLD (Precious Metal) Hong Kong HK$1,000 100 – Metal broking

Strategic Investment Limited 1,000 and trading

Excel Vision Development Hong Kong HK$1,000 100 100 Property holding

Limited 1,000 for rental purposes

Full Source Enterprises Limited British Virgin US$1 100 – Investment holding

Islands/ 1

Hong Kong

49. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries
(continued)

49.
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Nominal value

of issued

Place of ordinary share/

incorporation paid-up capital Percentage of

and operations equity attributable

Name to the Group Principal activities

2007 2006

Held indirectly (continued)

Lee Fung Hong Bullion Hong Kong HK$30,000,000 100 100 Property holding

Limited 30,000,000

Lee Fung Hong (Cheung’s) Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100 100 Metal broking

Bullion Limited 1,000,000 and trading

Lee Fung Hong (Cheung’s) Hong Kong HK$100,010,000 100 50 Forex contracts

Forex Dealers Limited 100,010,000 broking and trading

Mint Capital Assets Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 100 100 Metal broking

Management Limited 10,000,000 and trading

(formerly known as Cheung’s

Gold Dealers Limited)

Multilever Limited British Virgin US$10 100 100 Investment holding

Islands/ 10

Hong Kong

49. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries
(continued)

49.
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49. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries
(continued)

Nominal value

of issued

Place of ordinary share/

incorporation paid-up capital Percentage of

and operations equity attributable

Name to the Group Principal activities

2007 2006

Precious Sources International British Virgin US$10,000 100 100 Investment holding

Limited Islands/ 10,000

Hong Kong

Simsen Capital Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 100 100 Loan financing

1,000

Simsen (China) British Virgin US$1 100 100 Investment holding

Investment Limited Islands/ 1

Hong Kong

Simsen Services Company Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 100 Provision of

Limited 10,000 management services

World Snooker Club 147 Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 75 100 Snooker

147 1,000 operations

(formerly known as Simsen

Trading Company Limited)

49.
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50. Financial Risk Management
Objectives and Policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include investments

in equity securities, borrowings, accounts receivables and

accounts payables. Details of these financial instruments

are disclosed in the respective notes. The main risks arising

from the Group’s financial instruments are interest rate risk,

price risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors

monitors these risk exposures to ensure appropriate

measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner

and minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s

financial performance.

Interest rate risk

Short term floating rate bank loans, which are HIBOR-based,

are used to fund the margin financing facilities of the

securities brokerage business that are typically prime-based.

The principal risk lies with the interest rate difference

between the interbank rate and the best lending rate. The

Group mitigates the risk by monitoring the interest rate gap

between the short term bank loans and margin financing

facilities and revises the margin financing rate if necessary.

Price risk

Price risk represents the possibilities of changes in fair value

or future cash flows due to changes in market prices. The

Group is exposed to equity security price risk through its

investments classified as equity investment at fair value

through profit or loss. The Group is not exposed to

commodity price risk. Management monitors this exposure

by maintaining a portfolio of investments with different risk

profiles and the investment committee meets on an ad hoc

basis to review the investments held by the Group in order

to minimise the price risk.

50.
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50. Financial Risk Management
Objective and Policies (continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event

of the counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations in

relation to each class of recognised financial assets is the

carrying amount of those assets as stated in the

consolidated balance sheet. In order to minimise the credit

risk, The board of directors of the Company has delegated

a team responsible for determination of credit limits, credit

approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that

follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts due from

cash clients and loans due from margin clients with collateral

shortfalls. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable

amount of each individual trade debt at each balance sheet

date to ensure that adequate impairment provisions for

losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,

the directors of the Company consider that the Group’s

credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical

location is mainly in Hong Kong. The Group has no

significant concentration of credit risk by an single debtor,

with exposure spread over a number of counterparties and

customers.

Bank balances are placed in various authorised institutions

and the directors of the Company consider the credit risk

for such is minimal.

50.
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50. Financial Risk Management
Objective and Policies (continued)

Liquidity risk

Internally generated cash flows and bank borrowings are

the general sources of funds to finance the operations of

the Group. Majority of the Group’s banking facilities are

subject to floating rates and are renewable annually. The

Group regularly reviews its major funding positions to ensure

it has adequate financial resources in meeting its financial

obligations. The Group aims to maintain flexibility in funding

by keeping committed credit lines available and sufficient

bank deposits to meet its short term cash requirements.

The Group’s liquidity risk management includes making

available standby banking facilities and diversifying the

funding sources.

50.
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50. Financial Risk Management
Objective and Policies (continued)

Regulatory risk

The Company is listed on the SEHK and certain subsidiaries

of the Group are regulated by the Securities and Futures

Commission (the "SFC"). The Company and certain of these

regulated subsidiaries are required to comply with the Listing

Rules and certain other regulations according to the rules

of the SFC, respectively.

51. Post Balance Sheet Events

(a) On 7 March 2007, the Group entered into an
agreement to purchase a 40% equity interest in Head
& Shoulders Secur i t ies L imi ted,  a company
incorporated in Hong Kong and is a l icensed
corporation authorised to carry on Type 1 (dealing in
securities) regulated activity under Part V of the SFO,
for a total consideration of HK$16 mill ion. The
consideration would be satisfied by cash of HK$3
mil l ion and HK$13 mil l ion by the al lotment of
101,960,000 new shares of the Company at an issue
price of HK$0.1275 per share totalling HK$13 million.
The acquisition was completed on 6 June 2007.
Details of the acquisition are set out in a circular to
the shareholders of  the Company and in an
announcement dated 21 March 2007 and 6 June
2007, respectively. Upon completion of the acquisition,
the Group recorded goodwil l on acquisit ion of
approximately HK$59 million. On 13 June 2007 and
20 August 2007, Head & Shoulders Securities Limited
enlarged its issued share capital by issuing 9,000,000
new shares and 10,000,000 new shares, respectively,
at HK$1 each to its shareholders. The Group was
allotted 3,600,000 new shares and 4,000,000 new
shares of Head & Shoulders Securities Limited at a
consideration of HK$3,600,000 and HK$4,000,000,
respectively, which were payable in full on the allotment
dates.

50.

51.

(a)

40%
16,000,000

13,000,000
3,000,000

13,000,000
0.1275

101,960,000

59,000,000

1 9,000,000
10,000,000

3,600,000
4,000,000

3 , 6 0 0 , 0 0 0
4,000,000
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51.

(b)

0.42

120,000,000

49,000,000

52.

51. Post Balance Sheet Events
(continued)

(b) On 30 May 2007, the Company and VC Brokerage

Limited (the “Placing Agent”) entered into a placing

agreement pursuant to which, the Company had

agreed to p lace through the P lac ing Agent

120,000,000 new shares of the Company at the

placing price of HK$0.42 per share. The placing was

completed on 22 June 2007 and net proceed of

approximately HK$49 million was received on 22 June

2007. Details of the placing are set out in a circular to

the shareholders of the Company dated 5 June 2007.

52. Approval of the Financial Statements

The financial statements were approved and authorised for

issue by the board of directors on 28 August 2007.
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Year ended 30 April

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Turnover:

Continuing operations 124,445 173,120 23,413 27,203 16,972

Discontinued operations – – 5,810 64,205 63,931

124,445 173,120 29,223 91,408 80,903

Profit/(loss) before tax:

Continuing operations 64,087 (86,131) (16,501) (5,295) (90,919)

Discontinued operations 5,203 232,135 9,917 9,165 (4,859)

69,290 146,004 (6,584) 3,870 (95,778)

Tax (38) (1,840) (1,425) (3,549) (1,458)

Profit/(loss) before

minority interests 69,252 144,164 (5,159) 321 (97,236)

Minority interests (49) 49 – (506) (128)

Profit/(loss) attributable

to shareholders 69,203 144,213 (5,159) (185) (97,364)

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and minority

interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted

from the published audited financial statements.

Results
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As at 30 April

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Non-current assets 51,685 52,638 60,930 224,268 256,920

Current assets 410,523 296,913 97,824 83,179 132,578

Total assets 462,208 349,551 158,754 307,447 389,498

Current liabilities (150,031) (102,535) (72,310) (75,066) (152,530)

Non-current liabilities (14,865) (14,597) (7,775) (165,450) (168,975)

Total liabilities (164,896) (117,132) (80,085) (240,516) (321,505)

Minority interests (10) (225) – – (128)

297,302 232,194 78,669 66,931 67,865

Assets, Liabilities and Minority Interests
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